## **End Time Signs**

XXX

R. J. M. I.

By

The Precious Blood of Jesus Christ,
The Grace of the God of the Holy Catholic Church,
The Mediation of the Blessed Virgin Mary,
Our Lady of Good Counsel and Crusher of Heretics,
The Protection of Saint Joseph, Patriarch of the Holy Family,
The Intercession of Saint Michael the Archangel
and the cooperation of

Richard Joseph Michael Ibranyi

To Jesus through Mary

Júdica me, Deus, et discérne causam meam de gente non sancta: ab hómine iníquo, et dolóso érue me

Ad Majorem Dei Gloriam

"When he was sitting on mount Olivet, the disciples came to him privately, saying: Tell us when shall these things be? and what shall be the sign of thy coming, and of the consummation of the world? And Jesus answering, said to them... For nation shall rise against nation, and kingdom against kingdom; and there shall be pestilences, and famines, and earthquakes in places: Now all these are the beginnings of sorrows. Then shall they deliver you up to be afflicted, and shall put you to death: and you shall be hated by all nations for my name's sake. And then shall many be scandalized: and shall betray one another: and shall hate one another. And many false prophets shall rise, and shall seduce many. And because iniquity hath abounded, the charity of many shall grow cold. But he that shall persevere to the end, he shall be saved. ... When these things begin to come to pass, look up, and lift up your heads, because your redemption is at hand."

(Saints Matthew 24:3-13 - Luke 21:28)

Original version: 2/2000; Current version 11/2011

**Mary's Little Remnant** 

302 East Joffre St. TorC, NM 87901-2878 Website: <u>www.JohnTheBaptist.us</u> (Send for a free catalog)



## TABLE OF CONTENTS

ARE YOU PREPARED TO DIE? (4/2000)	7
GOD HAS GIVEN ME A SIGN! (4/01)	9
A VISITATION OF THE HARLOT (9/11/2001)	11
The worst crime	11
What is a Catholic to do?	_
No Peace, but utter destruction, for non-Catholic Nations!	
God Always Hated the United States of America	
The Worst Terrorist in the World	
God Does Not Bless America	17
WHY ME? (11/01)	19
BABYLON BOMBS BABYLON (5/03)	23
THE HARLOT (U.S.A.) POISONS THE WORLD EVER THE MORE! (7/03)	29
FLOOD AND FIRE (12/04)	31
TSUNAMI (12/26/04)	31
MARY CRUSHED JOHN PAUL II'S HEAD WITH HER HEEL! (5/05)	41
Flee from those whom "the world seated in wickedness" praises	42
Gathering of godless nations and faithless men at John Paul II's funeral	
Follow the few Catholics whom the world hates	
John Paul II now knows that evil is not good	45
John Paul II was probably a Talmudic Jewish spy	49
Benedict XVI, Joseph Ratzinger, is Vatican II's new apostate antipope	
A mark of the False Prophet	
The ultimate apology of the False Prophet	
The heavenly vs. the earthly Jerusalem	
John Paul II was a False Prophet (5/05)	
Primary matter: The Catholic Faith, not the Apocalypse	57
CBS'S BLASPHEMOUS "MYSTERY OF CHRISTMAS" (12/05)	58

## Are You Prepared to Die? (4/2000)

Die to your old self; die to the world; die to the flesh; die to human respect; die for Christ? Are you prepared to be crucified? A true Catholic is supposed to already be dead to all of these things. If Christ said to you right now, "Are you willing to literally die for me on this very day?" What would your answer be?

The royal way of the Cross is the only way to Heaven. Many think that as long as they tell our Lord they are willing to carry their cross and be crucified that this verbal promise is enough, and that surely the Lord would then remit the severity of the cross because of their "willingness," but then this is not a true willingness to carry the cross.

I at first thought, I can escape the full severity of the cross, but our Lord had made it clear to me, "No, Rich, this is the real thing, you are going to die, not only to the flesh and the world, but to every little precious thing that came between you and Me, and ultimately you are going to literally die for Me. You will live in this world as if dead. You will be treated as a stranger and hated by almost all."

Our Lord said, you are not greater than your Master, and if the world hated, detracted, mocked, and crucified Him, then surely this is what will happen to all true followers of Christ. If you want to attain eternal life, you cannot escape the cross. The cross is real, it is deadly and it will kill you.

Death to the flesh and the world is freedom, true freedom as our Lord had promised. No more will you be a prisoner of Satan and the evil world. No more will you be in servile fear of the world, but only the fear and love of God. The cross brings a true inner peace that nothing in this world can destroy or diminish. Only a true Catholic can understand that at the same time we suffer intense persecution from the world and saddened at the state of fallen man, we are truly, truly at peace with the Lord and full of intense joy. Yes, sadness and anguish due to the sins committed against God, and the great loss of souls, but at the same time great joy, happiness, and peace in the Lord, who comforts us and allows us the great privilege to communicate with Him, our Blessed Mother, and all the saints in Heaven. This as our Lord has reminded us, is the true home of the elect.

The fallen world, this earth, is nothing more than a giant penal colony for reprobates who are offered a chance to reform themselves and save their souls. This earth is one giant battlefield of evil versus good. It is a war of the true God and those that serve Him versus all the false gods and religions and those that serve them. To get right to the point, I tell potential converts that it is a war between our God, the God of the Catholic Church, and your god, and in so discrediting your god, there may be hope to save your soul, to recruit you to the winning side. We know that the god of the Moslems and apostate Jews are false gods; they are nothing, and that our God destroys all those who die believing in them. On their judgment day, our God say to the damned, "Where is your god now that he might save you?" Souls are saved by war and violence. The violence comes when a Catholic stands in the breach between a just God and fallen man, when he condemns false gods and religions and calls non-Catholics to conversion.

#### Are you ready to:

- Lose your job? (Lk. 14:16-27)
- Lose your home? (Mk. 10:21)
- Lose all your friends and be hated by the world? (Jn. 15:18-20)
- Lose your family? (Mt. 10:34-38)
- Be persecuted, and hated by almost all? (2Ti. 3:12; Lk. 21:17)
- Be lied about and calumniated? (Mt. 5:10-11)
- Lose your very life for Christ? (Mk. 8:35-36)

If you answered no to any of these questions, then know for sure that you have placed the love of that object above that of God and God will allow Satan to use the very thing that you love more then Him to torment you and ultimately in the end it will be a cause of your damnation.

## God Has Given Me a Sign! (4/01)

Hear ye, hear ye, all you sign-and-wonder seekers. God has given me a sign, so that you might believe. He has showed me what was, what is, and what shall come. What was is the Second Vatican Council was an apostate, heretical non-Catholic Council. What is, is the apostate, Antipope John Paul II and the non-Catholic Conciliar Church invented by the robber's Second Vatican Council are both pretending to be Catholic. What shall come is their utter destruction along with all those that are part of it in anyway! I prayed for a sign and God quickly sent me many, the Catholic interpretations of Holy Scriptures, past papal bulls/encyclicals, and the Holy Ecumenical Councils of the Church. Then God had me read the documents of the Second Vatican Council and John Paul II's writings and showed me his acts of idolatry, blasphemy, apostasy, heresy, and sacrilege, and the proof of their heresy and apostasy lay open before my eyes, as crystal clear as a polished diamond. He then placed the infallible teachings before me that a manifest heretic cannot be the pope. (See: my Strange Voices Video Series for these awesome signs)

I told a woman, whose family attends the heretical and schismatic Society of St. Pius X, whose husband would not even listen, that her children have a Mass to attend but they do not have the Catholic faith. I told her, do not be fooled by outward acts of piety by those who are void of the Catholic faith, those who do not teach, profess, and practice the full deposit of the Catholic faith. I told her that her children are in the clutches of Satan and on the road to hell. She then said to me, "I will not believe until the Blessed Virgin Mary gives me a sign." I told her, "You are tempting God, and it is a wicked and adulterous generation that seeks signs. You have already been given many signs, one of which is apostate Antipope John Paul II kissing the Koran and teaching that Moslems worship the same God as Catholics. What more do you need?" However, God in His great mercy had given this woman a sign shortly after our conversation, but it was not the one she expected. God, by the intercession and mediation of the Blessed Virgin Mary, crusher of heresies—who this woman invoked to defend her apostasy and heresy—took her child a week later under very tragic circumstances. God, by allowing the physical death of her infant, showed her the spiritual death of her infant, who is now damned to hell for all eternity, and showed her the spiritual death she is inflicting upon her other children. Just as the Blessed Mother's warning at LaSalette came to pass when infants died of starvation in the hands of their parents.

A similar sign can be expected for all sign-and-wonder seekers and those who place the Holy Mass before the Catholic faith because neither is primarily concerned about the Catholic faith. This was also a sign that there is a better hope that this woman will eventually respond to God's grace. God chastises those whom He loves, those in whom He sees a hope of repentance and conversion. Whereas, those for whom God sees there is no hope due to their obstinacy He lets wallow in false prosperity, false consolations, flattered by the world, with one apparent success after another, only serving to increase their pride and confidence in their damnable state. He lets them go on, temporarily unpunished, while living a life of faithlessness, and yet in a little while their day of eternal damnation will come! All in due time are given the just reward they deserve, and woe to those whom God destroys, both their body and soul in hell (Mt. 10:28). Just because you have not yet been punished in like manner, either unto the hope of

amendment or utter destruction, do not think you are justified, or better than this woman and her family.

"Think you that these Galileans were sinners above all the men of Galilee, because they suffered such things? ...Or those eighteen upon whom the tower fell in Siloe and slew them: think you that they also were debtors above all the men that dwelt in Jerusalem? No, I say to you: but except you do penance, you shall all likewise perish." (Luke 13:2-5)

In fact, fallen-away Catholics and all sinners, who have not been punished by God unto their amendment, have more to fear, because God may see there is no hope in their case, so he lets them run wild in their sins against the faith and morality until they fill up their cup with abominations and then, yes then, in a fateful and swift moment God shall destroy their body and soul in hell.

Oh, I mentioned the "sign," but I forgot to mention the "wonder." The wonder is, that it is a wonder that after viewing all the evidence against the Conciliar Church and apostate Antipope John Paul II, that most fallen away Catholics don't even care in the least, and those that do, sit silently by and do nothing, instead of raising their voices from the rooftops and sounding a trumpet blast. Yea, they remain, either in direct or indirect communion with this most evil monster yet, the False Prophet, Antipope John Paul II and the Conciliar Church. They complain and petition the serpent, every time the serpent bites them, when it is they who keep reaching their hand into the serpent's den. Do they have a right to complain to God and expect His help, when time and time again they return to the evil and evildoers, as dogs return to their own vomit? Yes, folks that is indeed the wonder of all wonders that even the saints in Heaven could not have imagined that the faithlessness would be this bad. "But yet the Son of man, when he cometh, shall he find, think you, faith on earth?" (Lk. 18:8) The False Prophet John Paul II is paying the road for the Antichrist by breaking down all barriers of religions, undermining the Catholic Church and faith, and preparing the world to worship the Beast, the Antichrist, and his religion. It is no wonder that some see John Paul II as the Antichrist, because the forerunner, the False Prophet, shares many of the same traits as the Antichrist, just as John the Baptist shared many of the traits of Jesus Christ. And, another even more amazing wonder is that some who believe he is the Antichrist or False Prophet stay in communion with him. Imagine that, fallen angles they are, who sit on the fence, thinking that to straddle the fence is acceptable to the all-or-nothing God.

More signs will be given. This Journal and future Journals and Newsletters will track and record the non-Catholic deceivers, who go by the name Catholic, but are not Catholic. It will track their ever-deeper descent into the world of darkness, lies, discord, chaos, passivity and effeminacy. It will also be a voice of God, to testify against the works of darkness throughout the whole world, to announce His wrath and punishments against the wicked, and call to conversion those who are lost.

## A Visitation of the Harlot (9/11/2001)

Taken from Exurge Michael Journal, No. 7.

"Think you that these Galileans were sinners above all the men of Galilee, because they suffered such things? ...Or those eighteen upon whom the tower fell in Siloe and slew them: think you that they also were debtors above all the men that dwelt in Jerusalem? No, I say to you: but except you do penance, you shall all likewise perish." (Luke 13:2-5)

The fall of the World Trade Centers and the attack against the Pentagon, in the United States of America on September 11th, is just a minor visitation of the Harlot for her great sins. The Harlot has not yet accomplished the task she is destine to fulfill, which is bring the Antichrist to power by supporting and defending the antichrist Jews and their State of Israel, which is an abomination of desolation in a place where it should not be. It is the Zionist Religious Jews that are bringing Antichrist to power. "I am come in the name of my Father, and you receive me not: if another shall come in his own name [ed. the Antichrist], him you will receive." (Jn. 5:43) The purpose of the attack against the U.S.A. is two-fold; One, as a minor punishment from God; Two, as a necessary step in Satan's plan to bring the Antichrist to power. Its purpose was to make the Harlot mad enough to war against Moslem terrorists, and thus serve the purpose of apostate Israel. Just as Pearl Harbor served the purpose to thrust the U.S.A. into World War II in order to defend the Judeo-Masonic cause of bringing Antichrist to power. Satan controls all non-Catholics. and manipulates them to the degree that God allows. Satan plays one group against the other, to ultimately serve his purpose, which is to bring the Antichrist to power. Apostate Jews, Moslems, and Protestants serve Satan. They are used and abused by him to suit his purpose.

#### The worst crime

The crime committed by apostate Jews and Freemasons when they blew up the World Trade Centers and Building 7 and part of the Pentagon was not the worst crime. God allowed this in order to punish the United States citizens for following the reprobate rulers of the United States and as a necessary step in Satan's plan to bring the Antichrist to power.

However, the worst crime was committed after the attack in which the First Commandment was violated in epic proportions. Any sin against the moral commandments, no matter how bad, or how many are committed, such as abortion, pales in comparison to one sin against the first commandment, which is a direct attack against God—an attempt at spiritual Deicide. No human death, unjust as it may be, compares to an attempt to murder God; an attempt that succeeded when Jesus Christ was murdered on the Holy Cross. All sins against the first commandment are an attempt at murdering the true God. It is the violation of this commandment that leads to all other sins, abortion, adultery, fornication, homosexuality, alcoholism, drug addiction, stealing, robbing, cheating, murder, greed, gluttony, etc.

After God allowed the USA to be punished by its own evil rulers, worse crimes were committed—crimes of idolatry, which are sins against the First Commandment, were committed worldwide. Prayers were offered up to a god, or gods, in prayer groups that do

not worship the true God at all. The worse crime was fallen-away Catholics joining in prayer with professed non-Catholics, which is the greatest abomination in the eyes of God. Those who go by His Name, so-called Catholics, prostituted themselves with false gods, they committed spiritual fornication with false gods. I will mention one such event. In Washington D.C. in the National Cathedral, which is a Protestant Cathedral, prayers were offered up by leaders of different religions, while the heads of state attended. The apostate Theodore "Cardinal" McCarrick took part in this idolatrous event with other Protestants. He recited the gospel reading, and then assisted the heretic Billy Graham to the pulpit, who then gave the main sermon. Other Protestants also gave sermons. And then at the end they all sang together to a god, other than the God of the One, Holy, Catholic, Apostolic, and Church.

The Council of Carthage: <u>One must neither pray nor sing psalms with heretics</u>, and whosoever shall communicate with those who are cut off from the communion of the Church, whether clergy or layman, let him be excommunicated.

That, dear reader is the crime of all crimes that cries out to Heaven for vengeance against all who participated and condoned this idolatrous event, and others like it worldwide. It calls down the blood of the martyrs, who died fighting against all non-Catholic religions. There were a multitude of such events worldwide. How many fallen-away Catholics are joining in prayer with professed non-Catholics? How many fallen-away Catholics who belong to the Conciliar Church are praying Rosaries in communion with other fallen-away Catholics (Traditionalists of all types)? None are Catholic, even though they all profess to be Catholic. They prove they are not Catholic by having no shame or conviction when they pray with others who do not even believe as they do. I ask these fallen-away Catholics a question, have you asked the people you are praying with what they believe in, not just in general but specifically? Do you care? Can you see how the Catholic faith is not your number one priority? Yes, the Catholic faith without which no one can be saved. It is because you also do not hold the Catholic faith yourselves that led you to commit these sins against the first commandment.

A false ecumenism is rampant between fallen-away Catholics of all types—those who profess membership in the Conciliar Church as well as those who do not. Not only will God not hear these prayers, because God does not hear the prayers of non-Catholics, but they will increase the wrath of God against them. Yes, God does not hear the prayers of non-Catholics. "He that turneth away his ears from hearing the law, his prayer shall be an abomination." (Prv. 28:9) If a non-Catholic is of good-will God reads his heart and grants him actual grace in spite of his non-Catholic prayers. The actual grace comes from the Catholic Church, not from his non-Catholic prayers. This actual grace is used for the repentance and conversion of the non-Catholic. The prayers of a non-Catholic does not benefit anyone, or any cause, because they are not heard by God. God only hears the prayers of Catholics. An un-penitent fallen-away Catholic's rosary prayer is not heard by God, and cannot benefit him or any cause he prays for, unless he is penitent and preparing to enter the Catholic Church by abjuration, in which case it can then help him alone. If God sees a fallen-away Catholic, who has not yet embraced the truth, is of good will in seeking the truth, God will give him actual grace to aid in his repentance and conversion, in spite of his prayers. St. Louis Marie De Montfort in his necessary book for these days, "True Devotion to Mary," speaks of seven false devotions to Mary, all by outward appearance seeming very sincere and pious, and each an abomination to God. St. Louis' book is the consummate writing on true devotion to Mary, that will help charismatics (the sign and wonder seekers), and pseudo-intellects (those seeking wisdom but never finding it), overcome their false devotions to Mary.

#### What is a Catholic to do?

A Catholic must not be swept away by emotions and misguided passions. All that is not of God is destined to perish in time and in eternity. All non-Catholic religions are false and thus are an abomination to God.

Third Council of Constantinople, 381: ...It is not allowable for anyone to produce another faith... whether from Hellenism or Judaism or indeed from any heresy.

Pope Leo XIII, *Testem Benevolentiae*: There is but one Church. One by unity of doctrine as by unity of government. This is the Catholic Church.

The false religions of apostate Judaism, Islam, Buddhism, Hinduism, Protestantism, Schismatics, New Agers, and those of no religion (Atheists and Agnostics) etc., are an abomination to God and destined to be destroyed in time and eternity. All those who die practicing them will be damned to ever lasting hell. There can be no true peace in a world in which false gods are worshipped and false religions are practiced. "O that thou hadst hearkened to my commandments: thy peace had been as a river, and thy justice as the waves of the sea...There is no peace to the wicked, saith the Lord." (Isa. 48:18, 22) The wickedest sin is the sin against the first commandment, the worshipping of false gods and practicing of false religions.

Catholics must stand back at a distance and watch non-Catholics war against other non-Catholics, and endure, as a chastisement for their own sins and the sins of others, when they themselves are persecuted. God uses the just to punish evildoers, and many times uses evildoers to punish evildoers. The worst of the evildoers are fallen-away Catholics. "For if, flying from the pollutions of the world, through the knowledge of our Lord and Saviour Jesus Christ, they be again entangled in them and overcome: their latter state is become unto them worse than the former." (2Pt. 2:20) Catholics, the very, very few that there are, must stand back and watch one evil nation fight against another evil nation. "Thus saith the Lord of hosts: Behold evil shall go forth from nation to nation: and a great whirlwind shall go forth from the ends of the earth. (Jer. 25:32) For nation shall rise against nation, and kingdom against kingdom: And there shall be pestilences and famines and earthquakes in places." (Mt. 24:7) In these final days, there is not one faithful Catholic nation. All nations have been handed over to the Antichrist, who serves Satan. "And it was given unto him to make war with the saints and to overcome them. And power was given him over every tribe and people and tongue and nation. (Apoc. 13:7) And I saw the beast and the kings of the earth and their armies, gathered together to make war with him that sat upon the horse and with his army." (Apoc. 19:19)

Catholics must not get swept away defending a cause that is not pleasing to God. A Catholic must put his religion, his faith, above his own country and nationality, even above his own family members. "For you are all the children of God, by faith in Christ Jesus... There is neither Jew nor Greek... For you are all one in Christ Jesus. (Gal. 3:26, 28) But as many as received him, he gave them power to be made the sons of God, to them that believe in his name. Who are born, not of blood [ed. race and family], nor of

the will of the flesh, nor of the will of man, but of God." (Jn 1:12-13) Any nation that rebels against the God of the Catholic Church is destined to fall, and that includes Catholic nations that rebel. Just look at history and you will see this is true. God blesses only faithful Catholic nations and faithful Catholic people. "Blessed is the nation whose God is the Lord [faithful Catholic nations]: the people [faithful Catholics] whom he hath chosen for his inheritance." (Ps. 32:12) While God has cursed, punished, and when they did not repent, destroyed, once Catholic nations that fell away from the faith.

"Hear, O ye heavens, and give ear, O earth, for the Lord hath spoken. I have brought up children [Catholics], and exalted them: but they have despised me. The ox knoweth his owner, and the ass his master's crib: but Israel [Catholics] hath not known me, and my people hath not understood. Woe to the sinful nation [fallen-away Catholic nations], a people laden with iniquity [fallen-away Catholics], a wicked seed, ungracious children: they have forsaken the Lord, they have blasphemed the Holy One of Israel [the Holy One of the Catholic Church], they are gone away backwards. For what shall I strike you any more, you that increase transgression? the whole head is sick, and the whole heart is sad. From the sole of the foot [fallen-away laymen] unto the top of the head [fallen-away bishops], there is no soundness therein: wounds and bruises and swelling sores: they are not bound up, nor dressed, nor fomented with oil. Your land is desolate, your cities are burnt with fire: your country strangers [non-Catholic Protestants, Schismatics, Moslems, pagans, etc.] devour before your face, and it shall be desolate as when wasted by enemies." (Isa. 1:2-7)

#### No Peace, but utter destruction, for non-Catholic Nations!

After God has used the evildoers as ministers of His justice to punish fallen-away Catholics He will in turn destroy them. The wrath of God shall strike all false religions, which are congregations of sinners, and all unbelieving nations (non-Catholic nations). "In the congregation of sinners a fire shall be kindled, and in an unbelieving nation wrath shall flame out." (Eclcus. 16:7) Every nation and person that will not serve Christ the King, as found only in the Holy Catholic Church, shall be killed at the command of Jesus Christ and suffer eternal damnation. "But as for those my enemies, who would not have me reign over them, bring them hither and kill them before me. (Lk. 19:27) For the nation and the kingdom that will not serve thee [non-Catholic nations and kingdoms], shall perish: and the Gentiles [non-Catholics] shall be wasted with desolation." (Isa. 60:12) Only the just nation (a faithful Catholic nation) and just people (faithful Catholics) shall enter into God's blessings. "Open ye the gates, and let the just nation, that keepeth the truth, enter in. (Isa 26:2) Justice exalteth a nation: but sin maketh nations miserable." (Prv. 14:34) The primary act of justice is that a Nation serves the true God, the God of the Holy Catholic Church, and those that do not will ultimately be miserable, and eventually be destroyed, in spite of the illusion of prosperity.

Pope Pius X, *E Supreme Apostolatus*: 7. The desire for peace is certainly harbored in every breast, and there is no one who does not ardently invoke it. But to want peace without God is an absurdity, seeing that where God is absent thence too justice flies, and when justice is taken away it is vain to cherish the hope of peace. "Peace is the work of justice" (Is. xxii., 17). There are many, We are well aware, who, in their yearning for peace, that is for the tranquility of order, band themselves into societies and parties, which they style parties of order. Hope and labor lost. For there is but one party of order capable of restoring peace in the midst of all this turmoil, and that is the party of God. It is this party, therefore, that we must

advance, and to it attract as many as possible, if we are really urged by the love of peace.... 9. Now the way to reach Christ is not hard to find: it is the Church. Rightly does Chrysostom inculcate: "The Church is thy hope, the Church is thy salvation, the Church is thy refuge."

Pius IX, Encyclical on St. Francis of Assisi: People, taught by the experience of the past not to expect peace and security if they do not return to God, look to the Catholic Church as the one source of salvation.

Sudden destruction will befall all individuals and Nations who seek a false peace, in spite of the illusion of peace. "For when they shall say, peace and security, then shall sudden destruction come upon them, as the pains upon her that is with child, and they shall not escape." (1Thess. 5:3) Any man who promises the utopia of peace in a world in which false gods are worshipped, and false religions are practiced is a liar and a false prophet. "And it was not enough for them to err about the knowledge of God, but whereas they lived in a great war of ignorance, they call so many and so great evils peace." (Wis. 14:22) Christ taught us that this world is evil and is destined to be destroyed by fire. "[Christ] Who gave himself for our sins, that he might deliver us from this present wicked world. (Gal. 1:4) We know that we are of God and the whole world is seated in wickedness. (1Jn. 5:19) But the day of the Lord shall come as a thief, in which the heavens shall pass away with great violence and the elements shall be melted with heat and the earth and the works which are in it shall be burnt up." (2Pt. 3:10) It is only Christ, upon His second coming, who will bring true and everlasting peace to the new world He will bring, and that world is only reserved for faithful Catholics.

#### God Always Hated the United States of America

The U.S.A. is the most dangerous enemy of God. It is a very seductive Protestant Nation. Protestants use the Holy Name of Jesus in vain, by worshipping a false watered down Jesus, and in so doing leave men with a false and bad impression of the true Jesus Christ. "Every spirit that dissolveth Jesus is not of God. And this is Antichrist." (1Jn. 4:3) Protestants pass themselves off as true Christians, when they are not truly Christian at all:

The Catholic Dogma, Fr. Michael Müller, C.SS.R: "(Protestants) never had any divine faith in Christ. He who does not believe all that Christ has taught,' says St. Ambrose, 'denies Christ himself.' (In Luc. c. 9.) It is absurd for a heretic...to assert that he believes in Jesus Christ. To believe in a man is to give our full assent to his word and to all he teaches. True faith, therefore, is absolute belief in Jesus Christ and in all he has taught. Hence he who does not adhere to all that Jesus Christ has prescribed for our salvation has no more the doctrine of Jesus Christ and of his Church, than the Pagans, Jews and Turk's have. 'He is' says Jesus Christ, 'a heathen and publican.' ...Protestants do not believe in just such a Christ as did live and die for us all, just such a Christ as we believe and know to have lived, suffered, and died."

The United States of America was never a Catholic nation. The U.S.A. is the Babylonian Harlot mentioned in the Book of the Apocalypse Chapter 18 and prefigured in Isaias chapter 47. The U.S.A. is the epitome of the Masonic ideal, New York City being the epicenter. The U.S.A. (Judeo-Masonic forces) is the physical Babylon that has corrupted Rome, and thus fallen Rome has become the spiritual Babylon. (See: my book, "Strange Voices, Book Three, Fear of the Bomb Instead of the Fear of God!") The U.S.A. was formed to make war against Catholicism, actively and passively. The Judeo-Masonic

U.S.A. supported the anti-Catholic forces of the French Revolution, fought on the side of the rabid anti-Catholic forces in the Spanish-American Civil War. The U.S.A. secretly defended the rabidly anti-Catholic Masonic government in Mexico that persecuted and murdered Catholics. When the Mexican martyrs, the *Christeros* were dying for the faith, the U.S.A. Cardinals and Bishops turned a blind eye in favor of their Judeo-Masonic masters in the United States, choosing the U.S.A. and her false prosperity, over the God of the Catholic Church. The U.S.A. during World War II defended the Judeo-Masonic cause to bring the Antichrist to power by siding with the rabid anti-Catholic allied nations—England, Russia, and the free French—all ruled by Masons in the service of Zionist Jews. God has hated the U.S.A. from the moment of its birth, and has destined her to fall at the hands of the very Antichrist she will bring to power.

"Evil shall come upon thee, and thou shalt not know the rising thereof: and calamity shall fall violently upon thee, which thou canst not keep off: misery shall come upon thee suddenly, which thou shalt not know. Stand now with thy enchanters, and with the multitude of thy sorceries, in which thou hast laboured from thy youth, if so be it may profit thee any thing, or if thou mayst become stronger. Thou hast failed in the multitude of thy counsels: let now the astrologers stand and save thee, they that gazed at the stars, and counted the months, that from them they might tell the things that shall come to thee." (Isa. 47:11-13)

When Antichrist no longer has use of the Harlot, he will destroy her, eat her flesh, and burn her with fire (the prophesied destruction of major cities in the USA and especially the home base of the Harlot, New York City). "And the ten horns which thou sawest are ten kings [leaders of the other nations], who have not yet received a kingdom: but shall receive power as kings, one hour after the beast [the Antichrist]. These have one design: and their strength and power they shall deliver to the beast.... And he said to me: The waters which thou sawest, where the harlot sitteth [New York City], are peoples and nations and tongues. And the ten horns which thou sawest in the beast: These shall hate the harlot [USA] and shall make her desolate and naked and shall eat her flesh and shall burn her with fire." (Apoc. 17:12-17) You can see God's hand in mustering up a great hatred of the United States by the rest of the world. The destruction of New York City and a good portion of the USA will be by nuclear fire. The number one enemy, the apostate Jews, who are directly employed in bringing Antichrist and the other kings of the world to power, indeed have mentioned this very plan that will fulfill the above prophecy.

#### The Worst Terrorist in the World

The U.S.A. terrorizes and murders souls at a more rapid rate worldwide than any other country. The Babylonian Harlot terrorizes souls with pornography, adultery, homosexuality, feminism, greed, materialism, liberalism, Rock-and-Roll & Rap music, perverted movies and television shows, and all filthiness in the public domain. The U.S.A. terrorizes souls by cursing, lying, cheating, stealing, covetousness, and deceiving; terrorizes and murders souls by birth control and abortion; terrorizes souls by allowing drugs to prosper and be readily available, while paying lip service to a war against them.

\_

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> The Antichrist and the kings of the other nations that serve him. The kings in this context incorporates the European rulers, the Russian, Chinese and Baltic States, as well as the Third World communist Countries.

Will God show pity to a nation such as the United States? No! God will bring it to a horrible end. He shall terrorize it and destroy it. "He had not pity on them, destroying the whole nation that extolled themselves in their sins." (Eclcus. 16:10)

The first and foremost sin that the U.S.A. is guilty of is the sin against the first commandment that leads to all the other sins. The U.S.A. allows blasphemy against Jesus Christ, His holy mother Mary, and the saints. The U.S.A. terrorizes souls by condoning and respecting every false religion under the sun, including witchcraft, Satanism, etc. The U.S.A. is not one nation under God, but one nation under Satan, for all the gods of non-Catholic religions are devils and idols.

"For all the gods of the Gentiles [non-Catholics] are devils. (Ps. 95:5) For all the gods of the [non-Catholic] nations are idols. (1Par. 16:26) The things which the heathens sacrifice, they sacrifice to devils and not to God." (1Cor. 10:20)

Moslems speak a truth when they say the U.S.A. is the Great Satan, but what they do not realize is that they are also of Satan. Yes, Moslems are infidels and are in a state of damnation, but they are not as evil as the United States. Yes, the communistic Chinese are pagans and are in a state of damnation, but they are not as evil as the United States of America. What does it matter to Catholics in exile who their non-Catholic masters are? What does it matter if they are apostate Jews, Protestants, Moslems, Buddhists, Hindus, agnostics, or atheists? Catholics must pray for, and call them to repent and convert no matter who their masters may be. And you will find that the people of a nation that is of a lesser evil will be more open to repent and convert, of course, after a great struggle, persecution, and at the cost of the blood of martyrs. That is always as it has been for true Catholics who set out to convert non-Catholics and non-Catholic nations. That is how God ordained it should be. Catholics must take up their cross and follow their Master, Jesus Christ, and be ever ready to shed their own blood for the Catholic faith.

#### **God Does Not Bless America**

Dear reader, can you honestly say that the God of the Holy Catholic Church, the only true God, blesses America? No!!! God does not bless America. He curses it. God curses America, land of rebels, and false religions, and fornication, and vice, and profanity, and filthiness of all sorts that she spreads from sea to polluted sea. God would not bless America anymore then He would bless Sodom and Gomorrha. America is much worse than Sodom and Gomorrha, and has spread her vices worldwide. The fact that God has not chastised the U.S.A., and has allowed her to wallow in a false prosperity like fatted pigs in the mud, proves that he has no love at all for the U.S.A. "For whom the Lord loveth, he chastiseth. (Prv. 3:12) Such as I love, I rebuke and chastise." (Apoc. 3:19) The U.S.A. has now dwelt under the worse curse God can inflict upon a people and nation. That curse is a false prosperity and a false security.

Do not think that those who died in the World Trade Center collapse are more evil than others. No, unless you do penance, repent, and convert, you shall all likewise perish and be damned to everlasting hell fire. Let this minor visitation of God upon the U.S.A. serve a good purpose by causing non-Catholics, which includes the multitude of fallenaway Catholics, to seek and find the true God, who can only be found in the Holy, Catholic, and Apostolic Church, which is not the Conciliar Church invented at the robber's Second Vatican Council with the its pretender pope, the False Prophet, apostate,

Antipope John Paul II as its head. Repent, convert, and abjure before it is too late! The end of the world comes for each man when he dies, and then comes the terrible judgment. "And as it is appointed unto men once to die, and after this the judgment." (Heb. 9:27)

## Why Me? (11/01)

Taken from Exurge Michael Journal, No. 7.

When catastrophe strikes and death comes upon loved ones men cry out to God and say, "Why me? Why us?" Well the truth is that God can give each man a million reasons "Why you?" The answer would horrify most. Ah, these are deep questions people ask. You want answers from God. You are bewildered and dumfounded. So now you shall receive the answer to your question. It is not that you do not already know the answer. It is that you do not like the answer. You do not want to obey God in all that He commands you to do. How many are so quick to believe and love God when He performs miracles and wonders, and how quick do they deny Him when He demands obedience from them. How quick they deny Him when they realize what the price is, what it will cost to be obedient to Him. How quick the Israelites forgot the power and wonders of the one true God who delivered them out of Egypt, when God presented them with the Ten Commandments. How much did they love Christ, until He said you must take up your cross and follow Him; when Jesus said you would be persecuted and hated; when Jesus said I came not to abolish the Law but to fulfill it? Ah, all these things most men did not want to hear.

Now for the answer to the question Why you? Why your loved ones? Where were you, and what were you dong the day and week before the catastrophe? Are you Catholic? If you profess to be Catholic, are you really Catholic? Do you profess the full deposit of the Catholic faith and live according to all the Holy Catholic Church's decrees? The Vatican II Church is not the Catholic Church and John Paul II is not a pope, but is an apostate antipope. Did you offer up daily prayer to God and sanctify the Lord's Day. Do you honor and venerate the Blessed Virgin Mary and prove your devotion to her? Did you pray the Rosary? Did you obey ALL of God's Commandments and decrees as dictated by the One Holy Catholic and Apostolic Church? "Blessed are they the hear the word of God, and keep it." (Lk. 11:28) Cursed are those who do not. So you see if you cannot answer yes to all of these questions then you should absolutely know, Why you!

"And if thou shalt say in thy heart: Why are these things come upon me? For the greatness of thy iniquity, thy nakedness is discovered, the soles of thy feet are defiled. ... This is thy lot, and the portion of thy measure from me, saith the Lord, because thou hast forgotten me, and hast trusted in falsehood." (Jer. 13:22, 25)

Only those who die and can answer yes to the above questions can be saved. Their reward is in heaven as they leave the wicked and evil world behind. To these souls death is a blessing not a punishment. In regards to those who failed the above test, those who cannot answer yes to all these questions, you see them grieve for their children, but did they give thanks, worship, praise, and total obedience to the God of the Holy Catholic Church who gave them this gift? Did they truly care for this gift the way God has decreed? Were they prepared to instruct and teach their children and loved ones the ways of the God who gave them the gift of life? How many, I wonder, in the crowd support abortion? How many are divorced and living with another in sin? How many are practicing contraception? How many look at pornography? How many allow and tolerate

pornography and all sorts of evils to propagate, instead of squashing it out of existence? How many are either homosexuals or support the homosexuals? How many listen to Rock or Rap music? How many steal, rob, cheat, and lie? How many are alcoholics drug addicts, or gluttons, which are mortal sins against the fifth commandment? How many men are effeminate? How many women are feminists? How many feminist women abandoned there homes, husbands, and children—by dropping them off at day care for a stranger to take care of—and opted for a career as their ultimate goal in this passing life? How many have placed the love of family members and friends over that of the one true God, the God of the Holy Catholic Church? Think again of Abraham's sacrifice of his only son, Isaac, in obedience to God. So how do you expect to be blessed when you lost your loved ones due to disobedience? - You who would not give God the priority and first place in your life. That means loving God first and foremost, more then your spouse and children. Oh, how concerned, and how you grieve for your lost loved ones. Is anyone truly concerned about God? Does anyone truly grieve when they look at Christ Crucified and see the result of our sins?

I think of all those who turn such a catastrophe into a profane religious event in which all the humans involved are heroes, automatically justified, and blessed due to the mere fact that they died in the catastrophe and assisted in the clean up. Mankind is always finding new ways to exalt and justify himself, even in catastrophe, in spite of the god he worships. This is all due to the false religion of Humanism, which is expounded by the freemasons and their satanic credo that constantly flatters evil fallen men by telling them how great they are. I think of all those who have now placed their humanity as a means of justification and sanctification by the mere fact of a good deed. They are presented as noble in this effort to clean up after the mess. In their self-righteous sanctimonious attitude they are even presented as holy and as victims. "But Jesus said to him: Follow me, and let the dead bury their dead." (Mt. 8:22) Surely, almost everyone, and most probably everyone killed and those assisting in the clean up, are DEAD, dead of soul and thus truly dead. As the Lord God chastises and punishes this wicked world most men shall not repent, rather they will curse the Lord God who gave them life and breath. "And the rest of the men, who were not slain... did not do penance." (Apoc. 9:20)

I pray men see in this catastrophe the chastising and punishing hand of God, and their great need to convert and/or repent unto God and obey His commands and decrees by becoming faithful members of His Mystical Body on earth, the One Holy Catholic and Apostolic Church. Let not your sorrow be according to the world, which worketh death. Let your sorrow be according to God, which worketh repentance and salvation. "For the sorrow that is according to God worketh penance, steadfast unto salvation: The sorrow that is according to the world worketh death." (2Cor. 7:10) Let not your tears and suffering be of no avail. Convert and repent before it is too late for your soul. The total of all earthly catastrophes and pains pales in comparison to the pains of everlasting hellfire, from which there is no relief or escape, where there shall be weeping and gnashing of teeth for all eternity, for ever, and ever, and ever.

"The Son of man shall send his angels, and they shall gather out of his kingdom all scandals, and them that work iniquity. And shall cast them into the furnace of fire: there shall be weeping and gnashing of teeth. (Mt. 41-42) Without are dogs and sorcerers and unchaste and murderers and servers of idols and every one that loveth and maketh a lie. (Apoc. 22:15) The fearful and unbelieving and the abominable

and murderers and whoremongers and sorcerers and idolaters and all liars, they shall have their portion in the pool burning with fire and brimstone." (Apoc. 21:8)

That, dear reader, is the true catastrophe, from which the damned cannot be consoled or delivered, no matter how many tears are shed for them.

## Babylon Bombs Babylon (5/03)

Taken from Exurge Michael Journal, No. 4.

The world was awestruck as Babylon bombed Babylon. Modern day Babylon, the United States of America, bombed and conquered the original Babylon in Iraq. Why? – Because Iraq, under the militant Moslem Saddam Hussein, is a threat to the Christ-denying Jews in Israel who are bringing the Antichrist to power. This is just one more step toward brining the Antichrist to power in fulfillment of Biblical prophecy.

One of the beast's mentioned in the "Book of the Apocalypse" chapter 13, the United States of America, made more fire come down from heaven upon Baghdad and elsewhere in Iraqi, for the whole world to see and to be in awe again. The first time was in fulfillment of Apocalypse 13:13 when, in 1945, this beast dropped Atomic Bombs on Hiroshima and Nagasaki in Japan. "And he did great signs, so that he made also fire to come down from heaven unto the earth, in the sight of men." This is explained in relation to Biblical prophecy in my book Why we lost the Pope, not the Papacy, and the Mass, "Fear of the Bomb instead of God".

A Zionist is one who supports the Christ-denying State of Israel. The main Beast, the Antichrist, will be a religious Zionist, a Christ-denying Jew, who shows himself to the world as if he is God. Therefore, he needs to rebuild the Temple in Jerusalem to gain worldwide recognition as the true Messiah. And as some Christ-denying Jews believe, that Temple must be built before Antichrist comes to power; others believe it is the Antichrist himself who will build it. In order for this to occur several things must happen first. One, the Christ-denying Jews must occupy Israel, and especially Jerusalem. Two, their false religion of Talmudic Judaism must be exalted so that they can be spiritually exalted as God's chosen, with a true religion, a true covenant, and superior to the rest. They need physical and spiritual justification in the eyes of the world, because almost the whole world will worship and serve the Beast. "And they adored the beast... And all that dwell upon the earth adored him ...the number of whom is as the sand of the sea." (Apoc. 13:4, 8; 20:7)

It is the U.S.A., which represents the Masonic Utopia, that breathes physical life into the Beast, and it is the Conciliar (Vatican II) Church with its False Prophet, John Paul II, also greatly influenced by the Masonic Utopia, who breathes spiritual life into the Beast. Both are directly preparing the way for the Antichrist. The U.S.A. secures a physical home for the Beast and protects it. The Conciliar Church secures the spiritual justification of the Christ-denying Jews and their false religion of Talmudic Judaism by teaching that it is a true religion that can bring peace to the world; that these Jews are still under God's covenant, which is even better than the New Covenant religion of Catholicism; that they are blessed by God; and, that it is a sign of righteousness, piety, and devotion that they are looking for a Messiah to come even though he is not Jesus Christ.

Neither task is easy. The first task, the occupation of Israel, was not so easy to accomplish, and for a time even impossible because God Himself had said that the Christ-denying Jews shall no longer have a homeland and the Temple would remain desolate. The history of the Christ-denying Jews failed attempts to occupy Israel and rebuild the Temple proves this. But, Christ also said there will come a time when an

abomination of desolation will be in a place where it should not be (Mk. 13:14). The first abomination in a place where it does not belong was the founding of the State of Israel in 1947, which is controlled by Christ-denying Jews. This is in preparation for another abomination where it does not belong, the Temple in Jerusalem; then the main abomination of desolation in a place where it does not belong, the Antichrist sitting in the Temple showing himself as if he were God (2 Thess. 2:1-4). When the Antichrist comes to power he will betray the Masonic Utopias, the U.S.A. and the Conciliar Church—his Harlots he used to seduce the world and come to power—and with his armies gathered from the rest of the world he will cast the Harlot off his back, destroy the U.S.A. and Rome, eat their flesh and burn them with fire (Apoc. 17:12-16). Israel is known to steal U.S.A. military secrets and give them to China and Russia, as they are preparing these countries, along with others, to strike against the U.S.A., with the Antichrist as the head of this world army.

Common sense dictates that if one is to look for the main agents that are brining Antichrist to power, which is a worldwide domination, one only needs to look who is in charge of the financial and economic sectors, and who has armies and weapons powerful enough to dominate the world in order to bring Antichrist to power. Indisputably, the financial and economic power belongs to Christ-denying Jews, and it is this that brought them to power and keeps them in power. It is this power that controls the rest. Money is needed to build an army and weapons. Who, at this moment in time, controls the most powerful army and weapons of Mass Destruction? - Indisputably, the United States of America, which purposely showed off her might to the world to put fear into potential enemies.

Do we have proof that the United States is the number one supporter and defender of Antichrist Israel and Zionist Christ-denying Jews worldwide? Of course! Only the most blinded fool or willful deceiver would deny this. One such proof is a recent article written by Patrick Buchanan. Unfortunately, Patrick is a fallen-away Catholic, for one, because he still professes allegiance to the non-Catholic Conciliar (Vatican II) Church and apostate, Antipope John Paul II, in these latter days of the Great Apostasy when this Harlot's crimes and criminals are notorious. But, nevertheless, there may be more hope for Pat to convert, as he still has some courage. On March 24, 2003, in *The American Conservative*, Patrick wrote an article exposing the Zionist Jews' plots and how President Bush is doing their bidding. As a result, Pat incurred the wrath of the Jews and has been accused of—you guessed it—Anti-Semitism!

Patrick Buchanan, *The American Conservative*, "Whose War?", March 24, 2003: "Former *Wall Street Journal* editor Max Boot kicked off the campaign. When these 'Buchananites toss around "neoconservative"—and cite names like Wolfowitz and Cohen—it sometimes sounds as if what they really mean is "Jewish conservative."

"...David Brooks of the *Weekly Standard* wails that attacks based on the Israel tie have put him through personal hell: 'Now I get a steady stream of anti-Semitic screeds in my e-mail, my voicemail and in my mailbox. ... Anti-Semitism is alive and thriving. It's just that its epicenter is no longer on the Buchananite Right, but on the peace-movement left.'

"[Buchanan] ...Indeed, it is the charge of 'anti-Semitism' itself that is toxic. For this venerable slander is designed to nullify public discourse by smearing and intimidating foes and censoring and blacklisting them and any who would publish them. Neocons say we attack them because they are Jewish. We do not. We attack them because their warmongering threatens our country, even as it finds a reliable echo in Ariel Sharon."

#### Patrick exposes President Bush's allegiance to the Zionist Jews:

Patrick Buchanan, Ibid: "Yet Boot readily concedes that a passionate attachment to Israel is a 'key tenet of neoconservatism.' He also claims that the National Security Strategy of President Bush 'sounds as if it could have come straight out from the pages of Commentary magazine, the neocon bible.' (For the uninitiated, Commentary, the bible in which Boot seeks divine guidance, is the monthly of the American Jewish Committee.)

"...Noting that Sharon repeatedly claims a 'special closeness' to the Bushites, Kaiser writes, 'For the first time a U.S. administration and a Likud government are pursuing nearly identical policies.""

If one may think Patrick's view is slanted, we have another source that says the same from an the Israeli newspaper. *Harretz*, written by a Jewish Political Commentator:

Harretz, Ari Shavit, "White man's burden," Thursday, April 10, 2003 (Nisan 8, 5763): "The war in Iraq was conceived by 25 neoconservative intellectuals, most of them Jewish, who are pushing President Bush to change the course of history. ...almost all of them intellectuals (a partial list: Richard Perle, Paul Wolfowitz, Douglas Feith, William Kristol, Eliot Abrams, Charles Krauthammer), people who are mutual friends and cultivate one another... Kristol is believed to exercise considerable influence on the president, Vice President Richard Cheney and Defense Secretary Donald Rumsfeld, he is also perceived as having been instrumental in getting Washington to launch this all-out campaign against Baghdad. ...the way to fight the chaos is to create a new world order that will be based on freedom and human rights<sup>2</sup> - and to be ready to use force in order to consolidate this new world. So that, really, is what the war is about.

...Krauthammer says... If the United States wins quickly and without a bloodbath,

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup> The *Protocols of Zion*, which is the master plan of bringing Antichrist to power, mentions that liberalism, that is freedom of religion and liberty for all (democracy), is a necessary step in bringing Antichrist to power, who will eventually place all men under his iron rule. This liberty breaks down all sorts of allegiances and convictions, religious and national, preparing men to easily accept the Antichrist when they realize democracy cannot bring peace. The spiritual aspect of this liberalism is that it floods men's five senses with vice, as it encourages them to follow their sinful inclinations; thus placing them in the iron grip of Satan. [Masonic Alta Vendita] "To get rid of Catholics... let us strive to popularize vice among the people. It must enter by their five senses: let them drink it in and be saturated with it... make men's hearts corrupt and you will have no more Catholics." [Protocol IV: 1-2] "Gentile masonry blindly serves as a screen for us and our objects... [Protocol X: 9-10] "When we introduced into the State organism the poison of Liberalism its whole political complexion underwent a change. States have been seized with a mortal illness - blood poisoning. All that remains is to await the end of their death agony... 10. Liberalism produced Constitutional States, which took the place of what was the only safeguard of the govim, namely, despotism; and a constitution, as you well know, is nothing else but a school of discords, misunderstandings, quarrels, disagreements, fruitless party agitations, party whims - in a word, a school of everything that serves to destroy the personality of State activity... [Protocol X: 17-18] "17. By such measures we shall obtain the power of destroying little by little, step by step, all that at the outset when we enter on our rights, we are compelled to introduce into the constitutions of States to prepare for the transition of an imperceptible abolition of every kind of constitution, and then the time is come to turn every form of government into our despotism... 18. The recognition of our despot [Antichrist] may also come before the destruction of the constitution; the moment for this recognition will come when the peoples, utterly wearied by the irregularities and incompetence - a matter which we shall arrange for - of their rulers, will clamour: 'Away with them and give us one king over all the earth who will unite us and annihilate the causes of disorders - frontiers, nationalities, religions, State debts - who will give us peace and quiet which we cannot find under our rulers and representatives." (See: my book, Strange Voices, Book Four, "The Elders of Zion behind Religious Liberty!," and Book Three, "The Enemy Floods the Five Senses")

it will be a colossus that will dictate the world order. ... The president understands that everything is riding on this. So he will throw everything we've got into this. He will do everything that has to be done. ... It's the war the neoconservatives wanted, Friedman says. It's the war the neoconservatives marketed. Those people had an idea to sell when September 11 came, and they sold it. Oh boy, did they sell it. So this is not a war that the masses demanded. This is a war of an elite. Friedman laughs: I could give you the names of 25 people (all of whom are at this moment within a five-block radius of this office) who, if you had exiled them to a desert island a year and a half ago, the Iraq war would not have happened."

In my Journal, *Exurge Michael*, Issue 7, I mentioned that the attack upon the World Trade Centers in New York City on 9/11 was going to be used to crush militant Moslems who oppose the plans of the Jewish Antichrist and his Zionist Israel.

Exurge Michael, Issue #7, "A Visitation of the Harlot": "The purpose of the attack [9/11] against the U.S.A. is two-fold; One, as a minor punishment from God; Two, as a necessary step in Satan's plan to bring the Antichrist to power. Its purpose was to make the Harlot mad enough to war against Moslem terrorists, and thus serve the purpose of apostate Israel. Just as Pearl Harbor served the purpose to thrust the U.S.A. into World War II in order to defend the Judeo-Masonic cause of bringing Antichrist to power."

Apostate Jews and Freemasons blew up the World Trade Centers, Building 7, and part of the Pentagon and blamed the Moslems so that the US citizens and world community would be angry enough to support war against Moslems countries, such as Afghanistan and Iraq, who oppose apostate Jews and their State of Israel. (See my "911 Conspiracy" page.)

It is destiny that the Jewish Antichrist comes to power. Therefore, as you will learn, militant Moslem opposition to the Antichrist State of Israel was slated for destruction by the Zionists well before 9/11. 9/11 was the excuse they waited for and exploited:

Patrick Buchanan, Ibid: "When the Cold War ended, these neoconservatives began casting about for a new crusade to give meaning to their lives. On Sept. 11, their time came. They seized on that horrific atrocity to steer America's rage into all-out war to destroy their despised enemies, the Arab and Islamic 'rogue states' that have resisted U.S. hegemony and loathe Israel...

"On Sept. 12, Americans were still in shock when Bill Bennett told CNN that we were in 'a struggle between good and evil,' that the Congress must declare war on 'militant Islam,' and that 'overwhelming force' must be used. Bennett cited Lebanon, Libya, Syria, Iraq, Iran, and China as targets for attack. Not, however, Afghanistan, the sanctuary of Osama's terrorists. How did Bennett know which nations must be smashed before he had any idea who attacked us?

"The Wall Street Journal immediately offered up a specific target list, calling for U.S. air strikes on 'terrorist camps in Syria, Sudan, Libya, and Algeria, and perhaps even in parts of Egypt.' Yet, not one of Bennett's six countries, nor one of these five, had anything to do with 9/11.

"President Bush had been warned. He was to exploit the attack of 9/11 to launch a series of wars on Arab regimes, none of which had attacked us. All, however, were enemies of Israel. 'Bibi' Netanyahu, the former Prime Minister of Israel, like some latter-day Citizen Genet, was ubiquitous on American television, calling for us to crush the 'Empire of Terror.' The 'Empire,' it turns out, consisted of Hamas, Hezbollah, Iran, Iraq, and 'the Palestinian enclave'.

"Nasty as some of these regimes and groups might be, what had they done to the United States? ...

"A list of the Middle East regimes that Podhoretz, Bennett, Ledeen, Netanyahu, and the *Wall Street Journal* regard as targets for destruction thus includes Algeria,

Libya, Egypt, Sudan, Lebanon, Syria, Iraq, Saudi Arabia, Iran, Hezbollah, Hamas, the Palestinian Authority, and 'militant Islam.'

"Cui Bono? For whose benefit these endless wars in a region that holds nothing vital to America save oil, which the Arabs must sell us to survive? Who would benefit from a war of civilizations between the West and Islam?

"Answer: one nation, one leader, one party. Israel, Sharon, Likud."

Patrick spoke many truths. But, unfortunately, Patrick sees history with carnal and not spiritual eyes. He does not see it from the true God's perspective, the God of the Catholic Church. This blinds him to the true reasons why things happen. He does not see the whole picture. This is evident by Pat's below comment which contradicts a teaching that belongs to the Ordinary Magisterium of the Church, and in so doing he commits grave sin. The unanimous consent of the Fathers teach that Christ-denying Jews are forbbidden by God to possess the Promised Land, Israel. Pope Pius X (1903-1914) sums it up:

"We are unable to favor this movement. We cannot prevent the Jews from going to Jerusalem - <u>but we could never sanction it</u>. The ground of Jerusalem, if it were not always sacred, has been sanctified by the life of Jesus Christ. As the head of the Church, I cannot answer you otherwise. <u>The Jews have not recognized Our Lord;</u> therefore we cannot recognize the Jewish people." (The Point, April 1957)

Yet, Pat does not agree. Trying to maintain his status as a recognized political commentator, he compromises the faith and bows to Christ-denying Jews by recognizing their self imposed right to occuply Israel:

Patrick Buchanan, Ibid: "Let us conclude. The Israeli people are America's friends and have a right to peace and secure borders. We should help them secure these rights. As a nation, we have made a moral commitment, endorsed by half a dozen presidents, which Americans wish to honor, not to permit these people who have suffered much to see their country overrun and destroyed. And we must honor this commitment."

This only proves there is no such thing as a Catholic politician or publicly accepted political commentator in the United States of America. The very qualification for those jobs requires one to be religiously indifferent, commit sins of omission, and explicitly profess heresy. If any believe in the dogma, "No Salvation Outside the Catholic Church"—which teaches men who live and die worshipping false gods and practicing false religions go to hell—then they certainly will not publicly profess it for fear of offending their colleagues and the public and thus lose their jobs; therefore, they implicitly deny it by sins of omission. Most, and probably all, do not hold the dogma and explicitly deny it. Also, they must profess the heresy of Americanism, which teaches that God has given men the right to worship false gods and practice false religions, as this heresy is written into the United States Constitution. The heretic, President John F. Kennedy, speaking for all so-called Catholic politicians, sums it up well:

Catholics and American Culture, Mark S. Massa, "S.J.", Chap. 6, A Catholic for President?, p. 137: "His address to the American Society of Newspaper Editors in Washington, D.C., represented one of Kennedy's most direct expositions of his views on church and state, birth control, and diplomatic relations with the Vatican. In it Kennedy emphasized, yet again, what he felt had been his position since the outset of his campaign: 'There is only one legitimate question... Would you, as President, be responsive in any way to ecclesiastical pressures or obligations of any kind that might in any fashion influence or interfere with your conduct of that office

in the national interest? My answer was—and is—no...I am not the Catholic candidate for President. I am the Democratic party's candidate for President who happens to be Catholic. I do not speak for the Catholic Church on issues of public policy, and no one in that Church speaks for me' ["The Responsibility of the Press: Address to the American Society of Newspaper Editors, Washington, D.C., April 21, 1960," in "Let the Word Go Forth": The Speeches, and Writings of John F. Kennedy, ed. Theodore Sorensen (New York: Delacorte Press, 1988), 126, 128.]"

Kennedy put politics before God, before the Catholic faith and Church. He even schismatically rebelled against Church authority by saying no one in the Church speaks for him. In so doing he abandoned the Catholic Church and faith in which he owes primary allegiance. By his own admission, he denied the Catholic cause to bring about the reign of Christ the King in America. Of course, if he did not abandon the Catholic faith and cause to bring about the Kingship of Christ in America he would immediately be cast out of politics and be denigrated by the Press. He says that when he rules as President he will not do so as a Catholic, which is a denial of Christ and His Church in favor of Judeo-Masons whose cause he serves by default. "He that shall deny me before men, I will also deny before my Father who is in heaven." (Mt. 10:33)

# The Harlot (U.S.A.) Poisons the World Ever the More! (7/03)

Taken from Exurge Michael Journal, No. 20.

"All nations have drunk of the wine of the wrath of her fornication."
- Apocalypse 18:3 –

#### No Censorship Means 'Baghdad Gone Wild'

By Niko Price

The Associated Press

BAGHDAD, Iraq – When the Atlas Cinema last showed "Blue Chill," people screamed: "Yes! Yes!" every time the actors began kissing, only to see the scratched reel jump to the next scene. On Monday, they sat in awed silence as naked couples writhed on screen.

"The movie is much more beautiful now, because there's sex," said a beaming Mohammed Taher, 18. Since Saturday, when the theater reopened with a freshly uncensored version of the low-budget flick, he has seen "Blue Chill" three times.

Baghdad has gone through a revolution in the past three weeks, casting off decades of censorship *and* state control. Banned books, satellite dishes and videos are now sold on the street \_as are alcohol and women...

Horrified by the changes, some Iraqis blame America for what they call a cultural degradation. If it continues for long, they promise to rise up in a holy war against the U.S. forces occupying their country. "Everything against Islam, everything we hate, has been imported by the Americans like a disease," said Abbas Hamid, a 60-year-old merchant... For now, Hamid appears to be in the minority as Iraqis excitedly discover worlds of vice — and virtue —long forbidden by the repressive regime of Saddam Hussein:

- Teenagers gape at Christina Aguilera's navel via brand-new satellite dishes illegal under Saddam.
  - Young lovers smooth in roadside cars...
  - Prostitutes walk the streets in some neighborhoods, beckoning passing motorists.

...Sahad Hashim, manager of the Atlas Cinema, couldn't be more delighted..."People are hungry for this," he said... Under Saddam, Hashim cut sexy scenes from his movies to conform with the Information Ministry orders. When the Americans took over, he simply spliced them back in. (Albuquerque Journal, April 29, 2003)

RJMI Comment: Elsewhere, as reported on the nightly news, U.S.A. soldiers antagonized the Iraqis by waving pictures of nude women at them from their vehicles, as a preview as to what is to come. As bad as the Moslems are, and they are infidels who are in the way of damnation, they are not as bad as the so-called Christians of the U.S.A., who make a mockery of the Holy Name of Jesus Christ by violating the very laws upon their heart with impunity. It is not enough that they violate them, but they obstinately impose their immorality on other nations that are not near as bad as they. The Harlot corrupts the

nations with sexual fornication of all sorts, immodesty, gluttony, feminism, materialism, greed, contraception and abortion, evil music and movies, rebellion against authority, etc. American, feminist women instruct Iraqi women on how to be disobedient to their husbands, and move the girls away from the home life as homemakers by educating them to do men's work, so that they aspire to a career in the world instead of being good mothers and housekeepers. American homosexuals impose their sinful ways on the nations, and the United States silences and punishes all who would oppose them. The U.S.A. has now corrupted almost every nation in the world. One of the worse sins of the U.S.A. is the fostering of religious indifferentism, that no matter what god men worship or religion they practice, they are pleasing to the true God and can be saved.

The worst sin is the mockery of the Holy Name of Jesus, which greatly hinders the conversion of good-willed Moslems and other non-Catholics. Yes, the U.S.A. commits all these gross sins against God in the name of God, liberty, and freedom. St. Peter speaks of these arrogant men, who in reality are rebels against the true God, the God of the Catholic Church. They want to be free from the true God and at liberty to break all of God's commandments with impunity. St. Peter says they, indeed, are not free, but slaves of sin and Satan. "For, speaking proud words of vanity, they allure by the desires of fleshly riotousness those who for a little while escape, such as converse in error: Promising them liberty, whereas they themselves are the slaves of corruption. For by whom a man is overcome, of the same also he is the slave." (2 Pt. 2:18-19) God would not bless the U.S.A. any more than He would bless Satan.

You do not have to be a prophet to know the fate of the U.S.A. Just read of the sins Sodom committed, sins which pale in comparison to those of the U.S.A., and then read of the fate of Sodom. The God that destroyed Sodom is the same God who will destroy the U.S.A., using the Antichrist, when he turns on the U.S.A., as His minister of justice.

## Flood and Fire (12/04)

### Tsunami (12/26/04)

Taken from Exurge Michael Journal, No. 26.

"And there shall be signs... and upon the earth distress of nations, by reason of the confusion of the roaring of the sea and of the waves; Men withering away for fear, and expectation of what shall come upon the whole world."

(St. Luke 21:24-25)

On Christmas Day, December 25, Catholics celebrate the birthday and manifestation of the Messiah, Jesus Christ, to the world. They celebrate His first coming and look forward to His second coming as the conquering King of kings who will save the elect and purify the evil world by fire: "For behold the day shall come kindled as a furnace: and all the proud, and all that do wickedly shall be stubble: and the day that cometh shall set them on fire, saith the Lord of hosts, it shall not leave them root, nor branch." (Mich. 4:1) That will be Jesus Christ's concluding and terrible Epiphany (manifestation) to this evil world when He destroys non-Catholics and bad Catholics by taking "hold [of] the extremities of the earth [and] shaking... the ungodly out of it?" (Job 38:13) Only a global conflagration could purify "the whole world [that] is seated in wickedness," (1 Jn. 5:19) that has been "infected by the inhabitants thereof." (Isa. 24:5) Upon Christ's second coming, He will take hold of the earth and cast all the evildoers into hell and seal them there forever, so that Satan, the other fallen angels, and the damned humans will never more roam the face of the earth to tempt men and to ruin the earth. Then, all that will be seen of the damned is "the smoke of their torments, [that] shall ascend up for ever and ever: neither have they rest day nor night" (Apoc. 14:11)

The world, once before, was almost as evil as it is in these final days. It was so evil in the days of Noah that God sent a flood to destroy the obstinate evildoers and purify the earth:



"And the earth was corrupted before God, and was filled with iniquity. And when God had seen that the earth was corrupted (for all flesh had corrupted its way upon the earth,) He said to Noe: The end of all flesh is come before me, the earth is filled with iniquity through them, and I will destroy them with the earth.

...Behold I will bring the waters of a great flood upon the earth, to destroy all flesh, wherein is the breath of life, under heaven. All things that are in the earth shall be consumed." (Gen. 6:11-13, 17)

Jesus prophesied that His second coming would be like the days of Noah when the flood took the people away because of their worldwide wickedness:

"And as in the days of Noe, so shall also the coming of the Son of man be. For as in the days before the flood, they were eating and drinking, marrying and giving in marriage, even till that day in which Noe entered into the ark, And they knew not till the flood came, and took them all away; so also shall the coming of the Son of man be." (Mt. 24:37-39)

In these prophetic verses we see Christ's second coming compared with the evil days of Noah and the punishing flood. The recent Tsunami (massive tidal waves) in Indonesia, Sri Lanka, India, and the surrounding islands, that killed over 163, 000+ people by water, reminded men of the flood in the days of Noah. Many newscasters, such as Dan Rather, referred to it as a cataclysm of Biblical proportions.

If sinful men are to be saved, they need to be reminded of God's wrath that is enflamed against them because of their sins. "For mercy and wrath are with him. He is mighty to forgive, and to pour out indignation." (Eclcus. 16:12) Men, especially in these final days, need to be reminded of God's wrath because they have fallen under the worst curse from God: a very deep forgetfulness of the true God and the evilness of their gross and flagrant sins. God has hardened their hearts and thus darkened their understanding. for they are worthy of it because of their many obstinate, unrepented sins. "Their understanding," St. Paul says, is "darkened: being alienated from the life of God through the ignorance that is in them, because of the blindness of their hearts. (Eph. 4:18) Therefore... on... whom he will, he hardeneth." (Rom. 9:17-18) The Catholic commentary says, "'He hardeneth...' Not by being the cause or author of his sin, but by withholding his grace, and so leaving him in his sin, in punishment of his past demerits." Jesus says, "That seeing they may see, and not perceive; and hearing they may hear, and not understand; lest at any time they should be converted, and their sins should be forgiven them." (Mk. 4:12) The Douay commentary says, "That seeing they may see, etc...' in punishment of their willfully shutting their eyes, (St. Matt. 13, 15,) God justly withdrew those lights and graces, which otherwise he would have given them, for their effectual conversion." Venerable Louis of Granada says, "God withdraws further and further from a sinful soul, in proportion as her vices increase. We can learn the deplorable condition into which this separation plunges the soul from God Himself, who exclaims, by His prophet, 'Woe to them, for they have departed from me. Woe to them when I shall depart from them' (Osee 7:13 and 9:12). This abandonment by God is the second woe of which St. John speaks of in the Apocalypse."<sup>3</sup>

Because of their willful ignorance of the true God and of sin and its consequences, the wicked have the audacity to call their great evils peace: "And it was not enough for them to err about the knowledge of God, but whereas they lived in a great war of ignorance, they call so many and so great evils peace." (Wis. 14:22) And this is another

-

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>3</sup> Venerable Louis of Granada, *The Sinners Guide*, Chap. 24.

final day sign: men will say peace and security in the face of their many crimes against God; when, in fact, there is no true peace that only the God of the Catholic Church can give (Jn. 14:27). Speaking for God, the Prophet Ezechiel says the political and religious leaders "have deceived my people, saying: Peace, and there is no peace." (Ez. 13:10) There is no peace in the world. There is no peace even in nations not engaged in military warfare. The war in these nations takes place within families and societies that rot from within because of sin and its resultant discord and mental instability. Speaking of family discord, Jesus says that "a man's enemies shall be they of his own household... the brother also shall deliver up the brother to death, and the father the son: and the children shall rise up against their parents, and shall put them to death." (Mt. 10:36, 21) And speaking of national discord, the Book of Proverbs says, "Sin maketh nations miserable." (Prv. 14:34) And, sooner or later, peoples and nations not engaged in military warfare, while thinking they are dwelling in peace and security, shall be destroyed: "For when they shall say: Peace and security; then shall sudden destruction come upon them, as the pains upon her that is with child, and they shall not escape." (1 Thess. 5:3) One thinks of the United States's new "Peace and Security Commission," which was set up after the attack on the World Trade Center buildings to help guarantee temporal peace and security for the United States. Try as it may, this harlot, just like the pagan Roman Empire that first rotted from within, shall fall. It cannot protect itself against the hand of God, the God of the Catholic Church.

Especially in these final days, it would be a great act of mercy if God would give obstinately sinful men a second chance by enlightening them and thus lifting His worst curse of deep forgetfulness. Of course, men would still have to cooperate with God's grace. Sadly, most will choose to remain in darkness; but gladly, some will not. "How narrow is the gate, and strait is the way that leadeth to life: and few there are that find it!" (Mt. 7:14)

Before enlightening evildoers with the truth, God first gets their attention by punishing them so that they may fear Him and thus turn to Him for mercy, for "in their affliction they will rise early to me: Come, and let us return to the Lord" (Osee 6:1), for "his mercy is from generation unto generations, to them that fear him." (Lk. 1:50) Without the fear of God, men cannot possess true wisdom. "The fear of God is the beginning of wisdom." (Eclcus. 1:16) True wisdom and thus salvation are only found in the Catholic faith. Therefore, especially in these final days, if men are to be saved, they must fear the true God. They need to be reminded before they die and it is too late that God still curses and punishes men who disobey His commandments: "A curse, if you obey not the commandments of the Lord your God. ...If thou wilt not hear the voice of the Lord thy God, to keep and do all his commandments and ceremonies, which I command thee this day, all these curses shall come upon thee, and overtake thee. ... Thus saith the Lord the God of Israel: Cursed is the man that shall not hearken to the words of this covenant." (Deut. 11:28; 28:15; Jer. 11:3) Since the death of Christ, this covenant is the New Covenant, which replaced the Old Covenant, and is established and found only in the Catholic Church. The worst, inescapable curse is to fall into the eternal pit of hell, a fall that awaits all those who die as non-Catholics or bad Catholics; this truth alone ought to put the fear of God into men of good will.

St. Peter prophesied that in these final days evildoers would come to such a state of forgetfulness that they will doubt or deny the first or second coming of Jesus Christ; and

forget the flood in the days of Noah, and thus the reason for the flood. They will pretend that everything was and is all right, that men are not sinners, or that God does not punish their sins:

"Knowing this first, that in the last days there shall come deceitful scoffers, walking after their own lusts, Saying: Where is his promise or his coming? for since the time that the fathers slept, all things continue as they were from the beginning of the creation. For this they are wilfully ignorant of, that the heavens were before, and the earth out of water, and through water, consisting by the word of God. Whereby the world that then was, being overflowed with water, perished. But the heavens and the earth which are now, by the same word are kept in store, reserved unto fire against the day of judgment and perdition of the ungodly men. But of this one thing be not ignorant, my beloved, that one day with the Lord is as a thousand years, and a thousand years as one day. The Lord delayeth not his promise, as some imagine, but dealeth patiently for your sake, not willing that any should perish, but that all should return to penance. But the day of the Lord shall come as a thief, in which the heavens shall pass away with great violence, and the elements shall be melted with heat, and the earth and the works which are in it, shall be burnt up. Seeing then that all these things are to be dissolved, what manner of people ought you to be in holy conversation and godliness? Looking for and hasting unto the coming of the day of the Lord, by which the heavens being on fire shall be dissolved, and the elements shall melt with the burning heat. But we look for new heavens and a new earth according to his promises, in which justice dwelleth." (2 Pt. 3:3-13)

Men of good will, can you now see clearly the message God sent by the Tsunami? The world today is as wicked as it was in the days of Noah when God destroyed the world by water; so also, in these final days, He is preparing to destroy it but by fire. Wake up from your deep forgetfulness of the true God, men of good will!

The day the Tsunami struck (December 26, 2004), the day after which Catholic's celebrate the first coming of Jesus Christ and look forward to His second coming, tells the unbelieving world that God still punishes men for their sins, and that it is Jesus Christ who visited the earth with this destroying Tsunami. It also shows the world that Jesus Christ is the Messiah and God, everything that He proved during His first coming. Hence, His prophecy in Matthew 24:37-39 and Peter's prophecy in 2Peter 3:3-13 are about to be fulfilled. The final day events that cause Christ to come and save His elect and the world from total destruction are at hand, which means the reign of the Antichrist is soon to come when "all the earth," will be "in admiration after the beast," the Antichrist. (Apoc. 13:3) That is when the two witnesses will oppose the Antichrist and his minions. They will call down God's wrath upon wicked men and convert, by God's grace and power, men of good will. "And I will give unto my two witnesses, and they shall prophesy a thousand two hundred sixty days... These have power to shut heaven, that it rain not in the days of their prophecy: and they have power over waters to turn them into blood, and to strike the earth with all plagues as often as they will." (Apoc. 11:3-6) This will cause men of good will by God's grace and aid to repent and convert into the Catholic Church and thus attain eternal salvation, for "these are they who are come out of great tribulation, and have washed their robes, and have made them white in the blood of the Lamb." (Apoc. 7:14) On the other hand, this will cause men of obstinate bad will to vehemently hate and persecute the two witnesses to the point of murdering them and then rejoicing over their dead bodies: "And they of the tribes, and peoples, and tongues, and nations, shall see their [the two witnesses] bodies for three days and a half: and they

shall not suffer their bodies to be laid in sepulchres. And they that dwell upon the earth shall rejoice over them, and make merry: and shall send gifts one to another, because these two prophets tormented them that dwelt upon the earth." (Apoc. 11:9-10)

Yes, men of good will, you can learn much about God from the Tsunami. You can learn who God is. He is Jesus Christ, the Messiah, the Second Divine Person of the Most Holy Trinity, and the King of kings who is soon to come. It is Jesus, the Son of God, who judges and punishes men for their sins. "The Father... hath given all judgment to the Son." (Jn. 5:22) It is Jesus who says to non-Catholics and bad Catholics on their judgment day, "Depart from me, you cursed, into everlasting fire which was prepared for the devil and his angels." (Mt. 25:41) During His second coming, it is Jesus, the King of kings, who orders the death of all His enemies when He will say, "as for those my enemies, who would not have me reign over them, bring them hither, and kill them before me." (Lk. 19:27) It is Jesus who, at the end of the world, commands His angels to "separate the wicked from among the just... and cast them into the furnace of fire" where "there shall be weeping and gnashing of teeth." (Mt. 13:49-50)

Also, God has commissioned me to remind the world that He is not the many, different Christs professed by the Protestants. He is the Catholic Christ, the God of the Holy, Roman, Catholic, and Apostolic Church; not the many, different, strange Protestant gods. "Heretics," says St. Augustine, "worship a God who is a liar, and a Christ who is a liar." St. Robert Bellarmine says, "A manifest heretic is not a Christian, as is clearly taught by St. Cyprian, St. Athanasius, St. Augustine, St. Jerome, and others." Tertullian says, "Heretics do not have the same God, the same Christ as Catholics." The God of Israel is the God of Catholics. Only Catholics are spiritual Israelites: "Know ye therefore, that they who are of [Catholic] faith, the same are the children of Abraham. ...And if you be Christ's, then are you the seed of Abraham, heirs according to the promise." (Gal. 3:7, 29) It is the Catholic God who says, "See ye that I alone am, and there is no other God besides me: I will kill and I will make to live: I will strike, and I will heal, and there is none that can deliver out of my hand." (Deut. 32:39) It is He, the God of Catholics, the "I AM WHO AM" who spoke to Moses in the burning bush, who sent the Tsunami!

Also, the true God is not the god of the Vatican II Church and apostate Antipope John Paul II. All the members of the Vatican II Church in these latter days of the Great Apostasy are apostates and heretics who have revolted from the Catholic faith, as St. Paul prophesied would happen previous to the revealing of the Son of Perdition, the Antichrist. "Let no man deceive you by any means, for unless there come a revolt first, and the man of sin be revealed, the son of perdition, Who opposeth, and is lifted up above all that is called God, or that is worshipped, so that he sitteth in the temple of God, shewing himself as if he were God." (2 Thess. 2:3-4) Indeed, Catholics have revolted from the faith in great numbers, almost to the last man. While retaining the name of Catholic, they are, in fact, fallen-away Catholics. The prophesied falling away of the Gentile Nations<sup>8</sup> from the Catholic faith started in an effective and progressive way with

\_

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>4</sup> Patrologiae Cursus Completus: Series Graca, Fr. J. P. Migne, Paris: 1866, 42:207.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>5</sup> "On the Church Militant"

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>6</sup> Patrologiae Cursus Completus: Series Graca, Fr. J. P. Migne, Paris: 1866, 1:1216.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>7</sup> Exodus 3:14.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>8</sup> Lk. 21:24.

the Protestant revolts of the 16<sup>th</sup> century and was completed in the 20<sup>th</sup> century. Less dishonest Protestants know that since the 20<sup>th</sup> century that so-called Catholics do not believe and practice what true Catholics had always believed and practiced from the time of the first pope, St. Peter, until the 20<sup>th</sup> century.

In the worst days of the Great Apostasy, which we are living in, the beloved St. John foresaw very, very few Catholics and no Catholic hierarchy; consequently the need of the two witnesses to teach mankind. (See: my book *Where are the Catholic Bishops and Priests?* "A Very Small Remnant Remains.")

The God of the Catholic Church has indeed punished the pagans in Indonesia, Sri Lanka, India, and the surrounding islands. He punished the Hindus and the Moslems because of their false religious beliefs and because of their horrendous crime of massive child prostitution. "For the wicked that denied to know thee, were scourged by the strength of thy arm, being persecuted by strange waters..." (Wisdom 16:16) Dear reader, do you believe Hindus, Moslems, and the nations struck by the Tsunami are worse than apostate Jews, Protestants, fallen-away Catholics, and anti-Catholic nations like the USA? Jesus says,

"Think you that these Galileans were sinners above all the men of Galilee, because they suffered such things? No, I say to you: but unless you shall do penance, you shall all likewise perish. Or those eighteen upon whom the tower fell in Siloe, and slew them: think you, that they also were debtors above all the men that dwelt in Jerusalem? No, I say to you; but except you do penance, you shall all likewise perish." (Lk. 13:2-5)

No, they are not worse! All non-Catholics, bad Catholics, and non-Catholic nations have been and will be similarly punished: "The wicked" shall be "like the dust, which the wind driveth from the face of the earth." (Ps. 1:4) "The eyes of the Lord God are upon the sinful kingdom, and I will destroy it from the face of the earth." (Amos 9:8) "The adversaries of the Lord shall fear him: and upon them shall he thunder in the heavens: The Lord shall judge the ends of the earth, and he shall give empire to his king, and shall exalt the horn of his Christ." (1 Kings 2:10)

Just after the Tsunami and during the Christmas season, God also warned the USA, the harlot, the whore of Babylon mentioned in Apocalypse Chapter 18 that perverts the whole world. Jesus Christ visited Southern California, Ohio, Arizona, and Utah with severe flooding. The God of the Catholic Church will continue to punish the harlot with natural and human catastrophes, such as the fall of the World Trade Center buildings in New York City, the home base of the harlot. God's "zeal will take armour, and he will arm the creature for the revenge of his enemies... And he will sharpen his severe wrath for a spear, and the whole world shall fight with him against the unwise. Then shafts of lightning shall go directly from the clouds, as from a bow well bent, they shall be shot out, and shall fly to the mark. And thick hail shall be cast upon them from the stone casting wrath: the water of the sea shall rage against them, and the rivers shall run together in a terrible manner. A mighty wind shall stand up against them, and as a whirlwind shall divide them: and their iniquity shall bring all the earth to a desert, and

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>9</sup> See my book *Why we lost the pope, not the papacy, and the Mass,* "Fear of the Bomb Instead of the Fear of God!" and *End Time Signs,* "Babylon Bombs Babylon."

wickedness shall overthrow the thrones of the mighty." (Wisdom 5: 18, 21-24) The final blow for the USA will come at the hands of the Antichrist who destroys the harlot by nuclear fire when he no longer needs her, just like a worn out whore who outlived her usefulness. "And the ten horns [world leaders that serve the Antichrist] which thou sawest in the beast [the Antichrist]: these shall hate the harlot [USA whom the beast no longer needs], and shall make her desolate and naked, and shall eat her flesh, and shall burn her with fire." (Apoc. 17:16) Just as the United States was the first to drop the nuclear bomb on others, so shall it be dropped on the United States, so that men "might know that by what things a man sinneth, by the same also he is tormented." (Wis. 11:17) Hence, the Antichrist's number one ally, the United States, who brought him to physical power does not share in his worldwide triumph; neither does the spiritual whore of Babylon, the Vatican II Church, the Church of the False Prophet, that spiritually justifies the Antichrist. This whore commits spiritual fornication with the world religions and gathers them together in preparation for them to worship the Beast, the Antichrist, and his Talmudic and Zionist Jewish minions. This spiritual whore of Babylon (the Vatican II Church) shall be destroyed by the Antichrist when he comes to power just like the physical whore of Babylon (the United States).

Although it is too late for those who died in the Tsunami, "for all those who die as infidels are damned," it is not too late for the survivors. Catholics are obliged to pray and sacrifice for their conversion and help them to the best of their means. The first help, the first good work, is to teach them the only truth that will set them free (Jn. 8:32), the Catholic faith, without which they cannot be saved. "Whoever wishes to be saved, needs above all to hold the Catholic faith." They must be told the real reason that God punished them, as mentioned in this article, and called to repentance and conversion into the Catholic Church, because there is no salvation outside the Catholic Church. Pope Eugene IV, in the Council of Florence, 1441, infallibly teaches the following:

"The most Holy Roman Catholic Church firmly believes, professes, and preaches that none of those existing outside the Catholic Church, not only pagans, but also Jews, heretics and schismatics, can have a share in life eternal; but that they will go into the eternal fire which was prepared for the devil and his angels, unless before death they are joined with Her; and that so important is the unity of this ecclesiastical body that only those remaining within this unity can receive an eternal recompense for their fasts, their almsgivings, their other works of Christian piety and the duties of a Christian soldier. No one, let his almsgiving be as great as it may, no one, even if he pour out his blood for the name of Christ, can be saved, unless he remain within the bosom and the unity of the Catholic Church." <sup>12</sup>

Calling non-Catholics to conversion so that they have a hope to be saved is a spiritual act of mercy and the first, necessary work. It would be an illusion and deception to only give the survivors temporal things: "For what shall it profit a man, if he gain the whole world," says Jesus, "and suffer the loss of his soul? Or what shall a man give in exchange for his soul?" (Mk. 8:36-37) Temporal things will pass away but spiritual things will not: "Heaven and earth shall pass away," says Jesus, "but my word shall not

\_

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>10</sup> The Sacred Congregation of the Propagation of the Faith, under Pope Pius X, 1907.

The Athanasian Creed (*Quicumque*), 4<sup>th</sup> century; D. 39-40.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>12</sup> Pope Eugene IV, Council of Florence, Bull Cantate Domino, 1441.

pass away." (Mk. 13:31) The heavens (stars and planets, and not the heaven where God lives) and earth, as we now know it, shall pass away and be replaced by a new heaven and a new earth. All men will die, but their souls will live forever either in heaven or in hell. "Meat for the belly, and the belly for the meats; but God shall destroy both it and them." (1 Cor. 6:13) Only spiritual things can give men what they need to save their souls and gain heaven, where there is no suffering, hunger, sickness, sadness, or any want; where there is eternal bliss, peace and joy. Jesus compares the spiritual things that save men to living water, which represents God's saving grace that Jesus gives to those who believe in Him and obey all of His commandments. Speaking to the Samaritan woman at Jacob's well, Jesus compares material water, which only temporarily satisfies the body, to this living water, which eternally satisfies the soul and even the resurrected and glorified body that will no longer thirst or hunger:

"Now Jacob's well was there. Jesus therefore being wearied with his journey, sat thus on the well. It was about the sixth hour. There cometh a woman of Samaria, to draw water. Jesus saith to her: Give me to drink. ...If thou didst know the gift of God, and who he is that saith to thee, Give me to drink; thou perhaps wouldst have asked of him, and he would have given thee living water. The woman saith to him: Sir, thou hast nothing wherein to draw, and the well is deep; from whence then hast thou living water? Art thou greater than our father Jacob, who gave us the well, and drank thereof himself, and his children, and his cattle? Jesus answered, and said to her: Whosoever drinketh of this water, shall thirst again; but he that shall drink of the water that I will give him, shall not thirst for ever: But the water that I will give him, shall become in him a fountain of water, springing up into life everlasting." (Jn. 4: 6-14)

The Holy Catholic Church is the only Church that offers men this living water. Only Catholics have a chance to be saved. Dear Survivors, we Catholics truly love you; hence, we do not want to see you go to hell, a place whose torments are eternal and infinitely greater than any on earth. That is why we first and foremost pray and work for the salvation of your immortal souls. Yes, to the best of our means, we are obliged to give you what you need to sustain your physical life; but only so that you would have a chance to save your souls and thus glorify the true God (the God of the Catholic Church), and, in turn, work to save other souls. The whole purpose of man's life is to know, love, and serve the one true God, the God of the Catholic Church, so that he may attain eternal salvation. Please, please do not be like the obstinate, punished people whom God said would not repent and convert. "And the rest of the men, who were not slain by these plagues, did not do penance from the works of their hands, that they should not adore devils, and idols of gold, and silver, and brass, and stone, and wood, which neither can see, nor hear, nor walk: Neither did they penance from their murders, nor from their sorceries, nor from their fornication, nor from their thefts." (Apoc. 9:20-21) I end with a warning to the whole world and a prayer:

"Say not: I have sinned, and what harm hath befallen me? for the most High is a patient rewarder. Be not without fear about sin forgiven, and add not sin upon sin: And say not:

The mercy of the Lord is great, he will have mercy on the multitude of my sins. For mercy and wrath quickly come from him, and his wrath looketh upon sinners. Delay not to be converted to the Lord, and defer it not from day to day. For his wrath shall come on a sudden, and in the time of vengeance he will destroy thee." (Eclcus. 5:4-9) "Except you will be converted, he will brandish his sword; he hath bent his bow, and made it ready."

(Ps. 7:13) "The great day of the Lord is near, it is near and exceeding swift: the voice of the day of the Lord is bitter, the mighty man shall there meet with tribulation. That day is a day of wrath, a day of tribulation and distress, a day of calamity and misery, a day of darkness and obscurity, a day of clouds and whirlwinds, A day of the trumpet and alarm against the fenced cities, and against the high bulwarks. And I will distress men, and they shall walk like blind men, because they have sinned against the Lord: and their blood shall be poured out as earth, and their bodies as dung. Neither shall their silver and their gold be able to deliver them in the day of the wrath of the Lord: all the land shall be devoured by the fire of his jealousy, for he shall make even a speedy destruction of all them that dwell in the land." (Sophonias 1:14-18)

May the Infant Jesus, through His Holy and Immaculate Mother Mary and St. Joseph His foster father, have mercy upon men of good will by manifesting Himself to them so that they may hear the Catholic truths they need to be saved and grant them the grace to understand, embrace, and live by these saving truths. Oh my God, the God of the Holy Catholic Church, for the sake of Thy Holy Name that is blasphemed worldwide, please lift, at least somewhat, the Amos' Curse<sup>13</sup> that you sent upon the whole world, so that men may again know Thee and know that there is God, the only God, the God of the Catholic Church, who rules and judges the earth.

\*January 2005

.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>13</sup> See my book *Where are the Catholic Bishops and Priests?* "The Ultimate Punishment – The Famine of the Word of God (The Catholic Faith)."

# Mary Crushed John Paul II's Head with Her Heel! (5/05)



"I will put enmities between thee and the woman, and thy seed and her seed: she shall crush thy head, and thou shalt lie in wait for her heel."

(Genesis 3:15)

Karol Wojtyla was born on May 18, 1920, in Wadowice (Kraków), Poland. He was elected as an apostate antipope of the Vatican II Church on October 16, 1978 and took the name of John Paul II. He died on April 2, 2005, in Vatican City. Because I was not given an opportunity to publicly "eulogize" John Paul II, I will do so now as if I were speaking to the whole world during his funeral. I will paraphrase the words St. Anthony of Padua<sup>14</sup> once used in a similar circumstance when people expected him to praise a dead reprobate: "John Paul II is

dead and buried in hell. Where John Paul II's treasure is (his affection and respect for false gods, false religions, and other sins against the faith), there also is his heart." <sup>15</sup>

On April 2, 2005, the Blessed Virgin Mary (the woman mentioned in Genesis 3:15) avenged apostate Antipope John Paul II's seductive false devotions and blasphemies against God, her Son, herself, the saints, and the Roman Catholic Church by ultimately crushing his head with her heel, by God's permission and power, and thereby sending John Paul II to the deepest pit in hell next to Satan for all eternity. As I have said many times, "The true Blessed Virgin Mary does not bless John Paul II; rather, she crushes his head with her heel." And she does the same to all of God's obstinate enemies.

In hell, a place absent of all love and all other good things, John Paul II can only hate with an all-consuming, burning hot hatred toward everything and everyone and especially toward God, the Blessed Virgin Mary, and the saints. Blessings were far from John Paul II while he lived because he actually loved cursing the true God by his blasphemies, idolatries, heresies, and apostasies; so now blessings and true love are far from him forevermore. Instead, he has put on eternal curses. "He loved cursing, and it shall come unto him: and he would not have blessing, and it shall be far from him. And he put on cursing, like a garment: and it went in like water into his entrails, and like oil in his bones. May it be unto him like a garment which covereth him; and like a girdle with which he is girded continually." (Ps. 108:18-19)

Man's life passes like a puff of smoke. If man does not spend his life well in serving the true God but instead seeks his own glory, his destination is hell and its torments that do not pass like a puff of smoke but last for all eternity. Along with the other humans who are damned, he will say, "What hath pride profited us? or what advantage hath the

1/

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>14</sup> The Catholic Encyclopedia, 1913, St. Anthony of Padua: "Invited to preach at the funeral of a usurer, he [St. Anthony] took for his text the words of the Gospel: 'Where thy treasure is, there also is thy heart.' In the course of the sermon he said: 'That rich man is dead and buried in hell; but go to his treasures and there you will find his heart.' The relatives and friends of the deceased, led by curiosity, followed this injunction, and found the heart, still warm, among the coins."

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>15</sup> No doubt, if I ever had such an opportunity, I would have died as a martyr then and there if God allowed it. All of the liberals who do not believe in capital punishment would have temporarily dispensed of their belief in order to murder me.

boasting of riches [of money or of worldly fame] brought us? All those things are passed away like a shadow, and like a post that runneth on, and as a ship, that passeth through the waves: whereof when it is gone by, the trace cannot be found. Nor the path of its keel in the waters: Or as when a bird flieth through the air, of the passage of which no mark can be found, but only the sound of the wings beating the light air, and parting it by the force of her flight: she moved her wings, and hath flown through, and there is no mark found afterwards of her way: Or as when an arrow is shot at a mark, the divided air quickly cometh together again, so that the passage thereof is not known: So we also being born, forthwith ceased to be: and have been able to shew no mark of virtue: but are consumed in our wickedness. Such things as these the sinners said in hell: For the hope of the wicked is as dust, which is blown away with the wind, and as a thin froth which is dispersed by the storm: and a smoke that is scattered abroad by the wind: and as the remembrance of a guest of one day that passeth by." (Wisdom 5:8-15)

## Flee from those whom "the world seated in wickedness" praises

Oh, how short-lived is an evil man's glory! "The wicked shall perish. And the enemies of the Lord, presently after they shall be honoured and exalted, shall come to nothing and vanish like smoke." (Ps. 36:20) While "the whole world seated in wickedness" (1Jn. 5:19) rewards John Paul II with praises and acclamations as the greatest saint that ever lived, God rewards John Paul II with everlasting hell fire where he is worthily mocked, defiled, degraded, and tortured as one of the most evil men that ever lived. Sinful men do not see things as God sees them, but quite the opposite. "For my thoughts are not your thoughts: nor your ways my ways, saith the Lord. For as the heavens are exalted above the earth, so are my ways exalted above your ways, and my thoughts above your thoughts." (Isa. 55:8-9) While John Paul II is praised on earth as a child of God, a pope, and a great saint, God condemns him as a bastard child of Satan, an antipope, and an apostate. God does not judge as sinful men do!

John Paul II's being loved and praised by the wicked world and wicked men is one sure sign that he was a reprobate, apostate, and false prophet. Jesus says, "How can you believe, who receive glory one from another: and the glory which is from God alone, you do not seek?" (Jn. 5:44) "You are they who justify yourselves before men, but God knoweth your hearts; for that which is high to [sinful] men, is an abomination before God." (Lk. 16:15) "Woe to you when [sinful] men shall bless you: for according to these things did their fathers to the false prophets." (Lk. 6:26)

Imitation of Christ, Thomas Kempis, Chap. 50: "Do not allow me to judge according to the light of my bodily eyes, nor to give sentence according to the hearing of ignorant men's ears. But let me distinguish with true judgment between things visible and spiritual, and always seek above all things Thy good pleasure. The senses of men often err in their judgments, and the lovers of this world also err in loving only visible things. How is a man the better for being thought greater by men? The deceiver deceives the deceitful, the vain man deceives the vain, the blind deceives the blind, the weak deceives the weak as often as he extols them, and in truth his foolish praise shames them the more. For, as the humble St. Francis says, whatever anyone is in Thy sight, that he is and nothing more."

True popes and other prophets condemn *all* evil—all false gods, all false (non-Catholic) religions, and all other sins against the faith and morals. They also denounce *all* 

sinners and call them to repent and convert. This causes true popes and other prophets (the same applies to good Catholics) to be hated by most men, as Jesus was, because most men are either non-Catholics or bad Catholics.

## Gathering of godless nations and faithless men at John Paul II's funeral

John Paul II's funeral saw the greatest gathering of godless nations and faithless men upon the face of the earth unto this day, which is a sure sign that John Paul II was a false prophet who served Satan and the Antichrist:

BBC NEWS, *Holding history's largest funeral*, by Peter Gould BBC News, Rome: "It promises to be one of the largest funerals in history. ... The sea of people that has engulfed the Vatican this week simply cannot be fitted into the available space. ... All the prime locations have been hired, at great expense, by television companies who plan to broadcast the service live to a worldwide audience of billions. ... The Italian media is comparing the funeral of John Paul II to those of Gandhi, Stalin, John F. Kennedy and Churchill, and saying this will be bigger than all of them. ... The service will last for three hours, and will take place in the presence of 200 invited guests, including world leaders and representatives of all faiths."

Pope laid to rest after emotional ceremony, MSNBC, The Associated Press, Updated: 1:33 p.m. ET April 8, 2005: "VATICAN CITY - Presidents, prime ministers and kings joined pilgrims and prelates in St. Peter's Square on Friday to bid an emotional farewell to Pope John Paul II at a funeral that drew millions to Rome. ...including dignitaries from 138 countries. ... Nearly 4 million people jammed into Rome since the pope died Saturday, doubling the city's population. ...Chants of "Santo! Santo!" — urging John Paul to be elevated to sainthood immediately — echoed in the square. ...Many millions more watched around the world.

"...Funerals in the last century for Mohandas Gandhi of India, Mao Zedong of China and Ayatollah Ruhollah Khomeini of Iran drew millions, too, but they lacked the presence of leaders from so many nations that came to mourn the pope. ... Turbans, fezzes, yarmulkes, black lace veils, or mantillas, joined the 'zucchettos,' or skull caps, of Catholic prelates on the steps of St. Peter's in an extraordinary mix of religious and government leaders from around the world. ...Jewish and Muslim leaders were among the dignitaries, including the presidents of Syria and Iran, and the king of Jordan. Others in crowd included U.N. Secretary-General Kofi Annan, former Polish President Lech Walesa, and Britain's Prince Charles, who delayed his wedding one day so he could attend."

This gathering together of the wicked nations and wicked men is a prelude to the reign of the Antichrist to whom they will give their allegiance. "Power was given him [the Antichrist] over every tribe and people and tongue and nation." (Apoc. 13:7) "And I saw from the mouth of the dragon, and from the mouth of the beast, and from the mouth of the false prophet, three unclean spirits like frogs. For they are the spirits of devils working signs, and they go forth unto the kings of the whole earth, to gather them to battle against the great day of the Almighty God." (Apoc. 16:13-14) "And I saw the beast and the kings of the earth and their armies, gathered together to make war with him that sat upon the horse and with his army." (Apoc. 19:19) "Satan shall be loosed out of his prison, and shall go forth, and seduce the nations, which are over the four quarters of the earth, Gog, and Magog, and shall gather them together to battle, the number of whom is as the sand of the sea." (Apoc. 20:7) This gathering of evil men and evil nations is so

great that the people who serve the Antichrist are "as the sand of the sea." It will seem as if all who dwell upon the earth worship the Beast (the Antichrist) except the very few Catholics and men of good will who will become Catholic: "And they adored the beast... all that dwell upon the earth adored him, whose names are not written in the book of life of the Lamb, which was slain from the beginning of the world." (Apoc. 13:4, 8) So great is this gathering of faithless men that Jesus compares it to the days of Noah before the flood when all men were wicked except for eight (Noah and his family): "And as in the days of Noe, so shall also the coming of the Son of man be." (Mt. 24:37-39) So great is this gathering of faithless men that Jesus says, "But yet the Son of man, when he cometh, shall he find, think you, faith on earth?" (Lk. 18:8)

Almost the whole world, then, will follow the Antichrist; and the path to the Antichrist leads through apostate Rome (Vatican City) to apostate Jerusalem where the Antichrist will rule from the third Temple. Indeed, "the whole world seated in wickedness... the number of whom is as the sand of the sea" beat a path to apostate Rome to attend John Paul II's funeral and are only a step away from beating a path to the earthly, carnal Jerusalem to worship the Beast, the Antichrist.

#### Follow the few Catholics whom the world hates

A simple and sure rule, then, to follow in these godless End Times is to flee from those whom the whole world seated in wickedness follows and praises. Do not follow the gathered crowd that is preparing to worship the Beast.

Two necessary signs, but not the only ones, that point to God's only chosen people, faithful Catholics, are that they will be very, very few in comparison to the world population and that they will be hated by the whole world seated in wickedness, just as their Master, Jesus Christ, was. "If the world hate you, know ye, that it hath hated me before you. If you had been of the world, the world would love its own: but because you are not of the world, but I have chosen you out of the world, therefore the world hateth you. Remember my word that I said to you: The servant is not greater than his master. If they have persecuted me, they will also persecute you." (Jn. 15:18-20) Indeed, faithful Catholics are hated not only by most men but also by all nations because there are no Catholic nations in the world. "You shall be hated by all nations for my name's sake." (Mt. 24:9) "And you shall be hated by all men for my name's sake." (Mk. 13:13)

Jesus teaches that those whom the wicked world and wicked men praise are surely false prophets. "Woe to you when [sinful] men shall bless you: for according to these things did their fathers to the false prophets." (Lk. 6:26) Whereas, two of the necessary traits of true prophets (faithful Catholics) are that they will be hated and will be calumniated as evil by almost all men. "Blessed shall you be when men shall hate you, and when they shall separate you, and shall reproach you, and cast out your name as evil, for the Son of man's sake. Be glad in that day and rejoice; for behold, your reward is great in heaven. For according to these things did their fathers to the prophets." (Lk. 6:22-23) Faithful Catholics, few as they are, will be gathered around the two witnesses, who are hated by the whole world seated in wickedness (Apoc. 11:1-13). God will draw all good-willed men out of the wicked world and into the Roman Catholic Church, under the mantle of His Blessed Mother Mary, as it was given her by God to crush the head of the False Prophet and the Antichrist. Mary's Little Remnant, indeed, is a very small but powerful army—powerful because it is protected by the one true God, the God of the

Catholic Church, who goes before it in battle. No power on earth can resist it unless God allows it. (See my book *End Time Prophecies:* Mary's Little Remnant is Little Indeed!)

## John Paul II now knows that evil is not good

None of John Paul II's earthly praises will grant him even a moment of consolation in hell. To him, hell is his only reality—heaven and the paradise to come are places that he will neither see nor experience. However, he knows they exist; and this only causes him to suffer all the more for knowing what he has lost for all eternity. He will never see and know God face to face in the Beatific Vision. Instead, he gazes upon the grotesque faces of Satan, the other devils, and the damned humans for all eternity. As John Paul II now gazes upon the multitude of grotesque damned humans and sees them suffering along with himself, he surely knows how heretically blasphemous was his teaching that most men are dignified and pleasing to God.

Let John Paul II preach to the damned humans about the "dignity of the human person." Let him preach to them about how "the world should conform more to man's surpassing dignity" and how "the right to religious freedom has its foundation in the very dignity of the human person." Let him dare preach to the eternally damned humans these false maxims and heresies that gave them a false confidence and thus aided in their damnation.

Let John Paul II preach to the dead Moslems, none having escaped hell, about how they could have been saved while worshipping a false god and practicing the false religion of Islam. Let him preach to them about how they worshipped the one true God, when they now know that the true God who judged them (Jesus Christ) is not the god they worshipped.

Let John Paul II preach to the dead apostate Jews, none having escaped hell, about how they could have been saved while worshipping a false god and practicing the false religion of Talmudic Judaism. Let him preach to them about how they worshipped the true God, when they now know that the true God who judged them (Jesus Christ) was not the god they worshipped. Let John Paul II tell the dead apostate Jews that the Old Covenant is still in force during the New Covenant era, that they were under a religious covenant with God, that they were God's chosen people, and that they were not under a curse, when they now know that the New Covenant fulfilled and ended the Old Covenant, that they were not under a religious covenant with God, that they were not God's chosen people, and that they were cursed because of their rebellion against the true God, the Most Holy Trinity.

Let him preach to all the damned humans his infamous credo "Be not afraid," when the most horrid, unrelenting, diabolical fear consumes them for all eternity.

But, alas, John Paul II's preaching days are over! Instead of preaching, John Paul II is especially tortured by the multitude of damned souls that he lured into hell by his false teachings. However, even though he cannot preach in hell, his preaching still lives on in the Vatican II Church. Indeed, by his apostate, idolatrous, blasphemous, and heretical teachings and actions that he left behind, he still preaches on earth and thus still leads a multitude of souls to hell. For example, one such lost soul is Gilbert Levine, a Talmudic

\_

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>16</sup> John Paul II, Redemptor Hominis, par. 13.2.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>17</sup> Vatican II, *Dignitatis Humanae*, par. 1.

Jew. John Paul II's apostate teachings and example converted Gilbert Levine—not to Catholicism but to Talmudic Judaism. In a recent interview after John Paul II's death, Gilbert Levine said that John Paul II's teachings, actions, and counsel made him a better Talmudic [Christ-denying] Jew. Levine said that John Paul II went beyond **tolerating** Talmudic Judaism to actually **promoting** it. He said that John Paul II did **not** try to convert him to Christ and Catholicism, but actually encouraged him to become a better Talmudic Jew, much to Levine's surprise:

### Transcript

Stone Philips, MSNBC cable network, April 2, 2005: The Reverend Billy Graham today called Pope John Paul II, and I quote, "unquestionably the most influential voice for morality and peace in the last 100 years." That voice spoke eloquently to the people of all religious faiths, especially to one man with whom the pope shared a unique and powerful tie. Here's Victoria Cordery:

Victoria: When Conductor Gilbert Levine first met Pope John Paul II seventeen years ago, he had no idea the profound effect it would have on his life. A Jew from Brooklyn, who had barely ever spoken to a priest, summoned to the Vatican by the Polish-born leader of more than a billion Catholics. He was about to enter a world few are allowed to see:

Gilbert: This is the Vatican—what am I doing? I was very nervous. You walk through 14 rooms or something, I don't even know, to get to the private library; and I was expecting there would be a lot of people there. And he was all alone; and he rose, guided me to his desk, put his hand on my hand, and said, "We must talk."

V: The pope had read about Levine in 1987 after he had become the conductor of Poland's Krakow symphony. During the meeting the pope spoke to him of his beloved hometown and the city in which he had risen to prominence, and about the Holocaust. Then the meeting ended oddly:

G: He was about to leave...and he turns around...he's got this impish grin on his face...and says, "See you at the concert." I said, "Wwwwhat concert? What are you talking about?"

V: Six months later, the pope invited Levine back to the Vatican to conduct a concert celebrating the 10<sup>th</sup> anniversary of his papacy. From that point on, Levine became the pope's maestro, planning and conducting countless papal concerts all over the world:

V: What do you think it was that intrigued the pope about you? That started this relationship?

G: He knew that I was a relative to the survivors, and that the Holocaust was powerfully in my soul. He was brought up with Jews; Jews were his friends; they were in and out of his house; they were people that he felt comfortable and easy with. They were

murdered—most of them were murdered, and I think that has been with him all of his life. ...

V: In 1994, six years after they met, Levine proposed what he considered "a bold idea," that the pontiff attend a concert he was planning to commemorate the Holocaust. He said the pope not only embraced the concept, but he made a startling, unprecedented offer:

G: I went to him and said, "Will you come?" And he said, "No, I have one better. I would like to do it in the Vatican. But, Maestro, tell me...will my gesture of reconciliation and memory be accepted?"

V: The news sent ripples through religious circles. Holocaust victims gathered in the holiest of Catholic enclaves under the eyes of the pope, the chief rabbi, and the president of Italy. The concert was telecast in 22 countries. The event was especially poignant for Levine's mother-in-law, a concentration camp survivor who had lost 40 family members to the Holocaust:

G: She was at the concert to commemorate the Holocaust. She lit the candles—six candles were lit for the holocaust. They had a relationship that was only possible between people who had seen this evil, up front....from different sides of the wall...and she underwent a transformation. And they healed—you're talking about healing each other—they really healed each other.

V: <u>Perhaps the most unlikely result of all the hours Levine has spent in the company of this devout Catholic leader is that</u> the maestro has become a more faithful Jew. <u>He went from not attending synagogue at all, to converting to orthodox Judaism:</u>

V: It sounds, the way you described your relationship, like he was your spiritual mentor.

G: The eliciting of a more powerful Jewish identity in Jewish faith is something that I think he actually encouraged, very strangely. He could have **tolerated** my Judaism...

V: Or tried to **convert** ya...None of the above...

G: —which by the way, to me is not inconceivable. Why didn't he do it? Because I had a faith. He elicited that faith. He deepened that faith. He respected that faith.

V: He just cared that people had faith.

G: Yes, powerfully...powerfully. He was a great Catholic, but he also was a person who honored other people's faith...Buddhists, Hindus, Moslems, Jews—he just did. It was who he was

V: So it seems fitting that the last major papal concert in 2004 was one of reconciliation where Jews, Moslems, Christians all gathered under one roof for that day fulfilling a

pope's dream. Three months ago Levine said he visited the pope for what would be his final good-bye. But he says what he's learned from the pontiff will be with him always:

G: I think I conduct better. I think I've learned more about my art through my working for him. And I will carry that on in my professional career. Whatever else I do in my lifetime, nothing will compare. [End of Transcript]

Why was Levine strangely surprised? Because at most he expected John Paul II to only tolerate Talmudic Judaism since Gilbert knows what the true Catholic Church and true popes teach about Talmudic Judaism, that it is a false religion; and Gilbert also knows what they teach about Talmudic Jews, that they cannot have a hope to be saved unless they believe in Jesus Christ and the Most Holy Trinity and enter the Roman Catholic Church. This is the main mission of the true Roman Catholic Church that started with the apostles on Pentecost Sunday when St. Peter, the first pope, called a multitude of unbelieving Jews to conversion so that they could have a hope to be saved:

"When the days of the Pentecost were accomplished, they were all together in one place... Peter standing up with the eleven, lifted up his voice, and spoke to them: Ye men of Judea, and all you that dwell in Jerusalem, be this known to you and with your ears receive my words. ...it shalt come to pass, that whosoever shall call upon the name of the Lord shall be saved. ... Therefore let all the house of Israel know most certainly that God hath made both Lord and Christ, this same Jesus, whom you have crucified. Now when they had heard these things, they had compunction in their heart and said to Peter and to the rest of the apostles: What shall we do, men and brethren? But Peter said to them: Do penance: and be baptized every one of you in the name of Jesus Christ, for the remission of your sins. And you shall receive the gift of the Holy Ghost. For the promise is to you and to your children and to all that are far off, whomsoever the Lord our God shall call. ... They therefore that received his word were baptized: and there were added in that day about three thousand souls." (Acts Chapter 2)

Gilbert Levine's testimony is just more empirical evidence of the result of John Paul II's apostate teachings and actions that justify Talmudic Judaism, Talmudic Jews, and the non-necessity of the apostate Jews to convert to Christ and His Catholic Church to be saved. This is just more empirical evidence that proves the Vatican II Church and its false prophets were created to bring the Antichrist to power by justifying his religion (Talmudic Judaism) and his people (Talmudic Jews), which will eventually replace Christ, Catholicism, and Catholics.<sup>18</sup>

Indeed, the Vatican II Church, an evil tree, and its apostate antipopes' teachings and actions have borne their expected fruit which, in spite of what they say, is rotten-to-the-core. Instead of condemning all false gods and all false religions, they respect and honor them, especially Talmudic Judaism. Instead of converting souls to Christ and His only true Church, the Catholic Church, they encourage souls to remain confidently in their false religions by promising them salvation where they are, when in reality they are on the broad road to hell.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>18</sup> See my books: *The Jews*: The Non-Conversion of the Jews; *Woe to You Who Call Evil Good!* Christ's Passion replaced by the apostate Jews' "Passion"; and *Sin, the Guilt, and the Passion of Christ.* 

## John Paul II was probably a Talmudic Jewish spy

No useful idiot but only a spy, an infiltrator who actually hates Christ and His Catholic Church, does what John Paul II did. His teachings and actions were well-calculated and timed to most effectively spread heresy, apostasy, idolatry, and blasphemy, while appeasing the suspicious. These are the deceptive acts of an intelligent infiltrator whose plots succeeded because he was supported by the godless bankers and the godless multimedia, all controlled by the apostate Jews. That men have infiltrated the Catholic Church should come as no surprise because anti-Catholic spies have infiltrated the Catholic Church from Her very birth onward, as recorded in the Bible and accurate histories of the Catholic Church:

St. Paul says, "I know that, after my departure, ravening wolves will enter in among you, not sparing the flock. And of your own selves shall arise men speaking perverse things, to draw away disciples after them." (Acts 20:29-30) "False brethren unawares brought in, who came in privately to spy our liberty, which we have in Christ Jesus, that they might bring us into servitude. To whom we yielded not by subjection, no not for an hour, that the truth of the gospel might continue with you." (Gal. 2:4-5) St. Jude says, "For certain men are secretly entered in, (who were written of long ago unto this judgment,) ungodly men, turning the grace of our Lord God into riotousness, and denying the only sovereign Ruler, and our Lord Jesus Christ." (Jude 1:4) "For there are also many disobedient, vain talkers, and seducers: especially they who are of the circumcision: Who must be reproved, who subvert whole houses, teaching things which they ought not, for filthy lucre's sake." (Titus 1:10-11)

During his whole life John Paul II was an ardent apostate Jewish sympathizer and promoter. Most of his best friends from childhood to death were apostate Jews, as Gilbert Levine confirms: "He was brought up with Jews; Jews were his friends; they were in and out of his house; they were people that he felt comfortable and easy with." While promoting and exalting Talmudic Judaism, John Paul II demoted and denigrated true Catholicism and the true Catholic Church by apologizing for its "crimes" and intolerance against sinful humanity and false religions, especially for its crimes against the apostate Jews and Talmudic Judaism. The Vatican II Church and John Paul II's most devastating and denigrating attack against the true Catholic Church is their implied apology for the "errors" found in the deposit of the Catholic faith (which consists of all the dogmas) by their denial of many Catholic dogmas that were infallibly defined by past popes. By denying many dogmas, they have denied a necessary and foundational mark of the Catholic Church; that being, Her faith that is one and the same as handed down by Christ through the popes.

Pope Pius X teaches that "No one... can lay other foundation than that which has been laid, which is Jesus Christ." Pope Gregory XVI teaches that "The Church is the pillar and foundation of truth." Anyone, then, who calls himself a pope, a successor of St. Peter, that lays another foundation cannot be the pope; instead, he is the teacher of a false gospel and leader of a non-Catholic Church. Consequently, the Vatican II Church and John Paul II's denial of many dogmas is an apology for the "sins" of the true Catholic Church that they denigrate in the eyes of the world.

\_

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>19</sup> E Supremi Apostolatus, 1903.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>20</sup> Quo Graviora, 1833.

Not only in life but also in death, John Paul II confirmed his allegiance with his true brothers, the Talmudic Jews, in his written will. One of only three people mentioned in his will was the retired chief Rabbi of Rome, Elio Toaff!

Details from pope's last testament released, by Noelle Knox, USA Today: "In his will, John Paul singled out three people by name or title: his personal secretary, Archbishop Stanislaw Dziwisz; Polish Cardinal Stefan Wyszynski, who was imprisoned for resisting communism; and retired rabbi Elio Toaff of Rome, who hosted John Paul during the pontiff's historic visit to the city's central synagogue in 1986. When Toaff paid his respects to the pope on Monday, he raised his arm in a sign of tribute.

"'One of his (the pope's) great concerns was relations with Jews, and he is doing everything to extend that, and this testament is where he wants the church to go now,' said the Rev. Anthony Figueiredo, associate professor of systematic theology at Seton Hall University and a special assistant to the pope from 1996 to 2001."

John Paul II's teachings, actions, and allegiances that promote Talmudic Jews and Talmudic Judaism are strong indications that he may have been a Talmudic Jewish spy. If so, when the Antichrist comes to power, do not be surprised if he proclaims and honors John Paul II as one of the greatest Talmudic Jewish spies who lived and died in the service of his true religion, Talmudic Judaism. John Paul II's body would then be exhumed and reburied in Jerusalem according to the rites of Talmudic Judaism. If John Paul II was not a Talmudic Jew, he was indisputably a spiritual brother to the Talmudic Jews. Whether he was a Talmudic Jew or not, the evil results of his teachings and actions are the same.

# Benedict XVI, Joseph Ratzinger, is Vatican II's new apostate antipope

On April 19, 2005, Joseph Ratzinger was elected as the next apostate antipope of the Vatican II Church. He took the name of Benedict XVI. If he is not the False Prophet, he will be yet another false prophet who implements the Vatican II Church's teachings, plots, and goals which are to sustain, advance, and escalate the Great Apostasy by continuing the work of bringing the Antichrist to power:

NNS NEWS House News Service, David Briggs, April 25, 2005: "In public remarks the day after his election, the new pope spoke of sensing John Paul at his side: 'I seem to feel his strong hand holding mine. I feel I can see his smiling eyes and hear his words, at this moment, particularly directed at me, "Be not afraid.""

"...On Thursday, Benedict announced that he would keep in place the top Vatican officials from John Paul's papacy. So church observers expect in many ways the new pontiff will continue the work of his predecessor...

"In remarks the next day, in apparent sensitivity to the concerns some have regarding his papacy, Benedict assured Catholics of his commitment to social justice work. He also said theological dialogue was a necessity, and reached out with 'affection' to people of all faiths to work together for the good of humanity.

"... Many in the Islamic world and many Jewish groups praised Ratzinger's election, citing his openness to dialogue. 'We welcome Pope Benedict XVI with open arms and a commitment to be a blessing to each other,' said Rabbi Jack Bemporad, director of the Center for Interreligious Understanding. ... Allen said, the office of pope has greater responsibilities, and in his early remarks about listening to others and promoting interfaith dialogue, the new pope seems to be reaching out to a wider audience."

Pope Benedict XVI Pledges Reform in Parallel with Preservation of Tradition, Eunice K. Y. Or, April 29, 2005: "The Pope Benedict XVI... according to the Associated Press, pledged to continue implementing reforms from the Second Vatican Council from his statement this morning. ... He made clear that his pontificate would closely follow the path of his predecessor, the late Pope John Paul II. ... Continuing the ecumenical efforts of the late Pope John Paul II, Pope Benedict XVI considers reunifying all Christians as his primary task. He said this morning that sentiment alone would not be enough, but concrete acts that enter souls and move consciences were needed such as 'an open and sincere dialogue' with other religions, the Associated Press reported. Rabbi David Rosen, the American Jewish Committee's international director of inter-religious affairs, responded, 'Ratzinger already has shown a profound commitment to advancing Catholic-Jewish relations'. ... Pope Benedict was further quoted by the Associated Press, 'I too ... want to affirm with decisive willingness to follow in the commitment of carrying out the Second Vatican Council, in the wake of my predecessors and in faithful continuity with the 2,000-year-old tradition of the church.' Pope Benedict referred that it was one of the late Pope's final will to continue on the work of the Second Vatican Council among the new generation."

No matter how conservative the press portrays Benedict XVI because of his stand on certain moral issues, he is, nevertheless, a very liberal apostate just like John Paul II. He commits the same numerous sins against the faith as John Paul II did, and it takes only one sin against the faith to automatically excommunicate a Catholic and to place him outside the Catholic Church as a non-Catholic.

Because he is the leader of the non-Catholic Vatican II Church, apostate Antipope Benedict XVI will have to promote its apostate, heretical, and blasphemous teachings as found in the Second Vatican Council, the 1983 Code of Canon Law, and the Catechism of the Catholic Church. Ratzinger is portrayed as a conservative to keep the so-called conservative elements within the Vatican II Church and thus under the yoke of the Antichrist. These so-called conservatives are worthy of this deception because they are only concerned about certain moral issues while they themselves deny and ignore the Catholic faith (dogmas). Sins against the faith are infinitely worse than sins against morals. For instance, the following are mortal sins against the Catholic faith: to believe that Moslems worship the true God, or that the Old Covenant is still in effect, or that Talmudic Jews are not under a curse, or that false religions should be respected, or that men who die worshipping false gods or practicing false religions can be saved, or that God created homosexuals; these mortal sins against the Catholic faith are infinitely worse than mortal sins of immorality (such as abortion and adultery) because sins against the faith are "first person" sins against God and lead to sins against morals. (See my article Romans One Curse.) Therefore, no matter how right Benedict XVI is about moral issues, a Catholic must denounce him as an apostate and heretic for his sins against the faith.

If Ratzinger converts and thus attempts to put an end to the Great Apostasy, he would be murdered (if God allows it) or replaced with another apostate antipope. If Ratzinger did convert, he would have to abjure from his sins against the faith that he committed by commission and omission and abjure from the Vatican II Church and its past apostate antipopes, which would obviously include his admission that he is not the pope. Only then would he enter the true Catholic Church and have a chance to save his immortal soul.

### A mark of the False Prophet

Because Biblical prophecy must be fulfilled, it is certain that the Vatican II Church (the Church of the False Prophet) and its apostate antipope will continue to justify the people (the Talmudic Jews) and religion (Talmudic Judaism) of the Antichrist until the world is prepared to worship the Antichrist (a Talmudic, Cabalistic Jew). The Vatican II Church and its apostate antipopes have already justified them above the true and only people of God (Catholics) and above the true and only religion (Catholicism).

For instance, on April 13, 1986, apostate Antipope John Paul II went into the synagogue in Rome not to convert the Talmudic Jews, but to justify them and their false religion and even to exalt them as "elder brothers" to Catholics and thus superior to Catholics. Speaking in the synagogue to current day Talmudic Jews and thus referring to their false religion of Talmudic Judaism (not true Judaism that ended upon the death of Christ), John Paul II said, "The Church of Christ, in examining its own mystery, discovered its bond with [Talmudic] Judaism. The Jewish religion is not extrinsic to us, but in a certain way it is intrinsic to our religion...You are our favorite brothers and in some ways, one could say, our elder brothers. ...Each of us in the light of the blessed heritage ...knows he is bound to co-operate...in their solution." Hence, this false prophet teaches that Talmudic Judaism is intrinsic to Catholicism and even superior to Catholicism and Catholics when he refers to Talmudic Jews as "elder brothers" to Catholics.

All that is left is for the False Prophet to cast off the yoke of the Catholic Church and Catholicism altogether. The Vatican II Church's final betrayal of Jesus Christ, the Roman Catholic Church, Catholicism, and Catholics will come when the False Prophet makes the ultimate apology for the "sins" of the Catholic Church by stating that it is now evident that Jesus Christ, the Catholic Church, and Catholicism are evil entities that God used to punish His true chosen people, the Talmudic Jews, just as God used the pagan Babylonians to punish His chosen people, the Jews, during the Old Covenant era. The False Prophet will not give this ultimate apology until Vatican City falls and the Antichrist sits in the Temple in Jerusalem, manifests his lying signs and wonders, rules the world, and richly rewards his servants.

One reason God destroyed Jerusalem and its Temple in A.D. 70 was to help those who had a weak faith—a weak faith in Jesus Christ, in His New Covenant that ended and replaced the Old Covenant, in His religion of Catholicism that ended and replaced the religion of Judaism, and in His New Covenant sacrifices, sacraments, and rituals that replaced the Old Covenant sacrifices, sacraments, and rituals. The continued existence of the Temple and the Old Covenant sacrifices, sacraments, and rituals performed in it would have tempted those of weak faith to believe that God still favored the Christdenying Jews and that Christ, His New Covenant, His Catholic Church, and Catholicism were false:

Catholic commentary, Luke 21: "VER. 6. It was by the divine dispensation of Providence that this city and temple were destroyed; for had the ancient rites and sacrifices continued, some that were but weak in their faith, might have been filled

\_

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>21</sup> D C of May 4, 1986, p. 438.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>22</sup> The Vatican II Church and its apostate antipopes also teach that Talmudic Jews are still under a religious covenant with God, that they are still under the Old Covenant which is still in force, that they are God's chosen people, and that they are not under a curse. (See my book *The Jews*.)

with astonishment at the sight of these different modes of worship, existing at the same time, and thus have been led astray from the path of truth. Ven. Bede."

Conversely, the rebuilding of the third Temple will instill in most men a false confidence that God favors Talmudic Judaism and not Catholicism. This will especially occur when Vatican City falls and the third Temple rises. The world will then be prepared to accept anything that justifies the Antichrist and his people, the Talmudic Jews. That is when the False Prophet will make the ultimate apology for the crimes of Jesus Christ, the apostles, the saints, the Catholic Church, and Catholicism. It will sound something like this:

### The ultimate apology of the False Prophet

"We have already confessed the grievous sins of the Catholic Church by denouncing Her following institutions: the Crusades, the Inquisitions, and the Conquistadors.

"We have already confessed the grievous sins of the Catholic Church by denouncing Her following practices: inquisitions, excommunications, condoning of corporal and capital punishment for sins against the Catholic faith and morals, intolerance of public manifestations of non-Catholic religions and practices She deemed immoral in Catholic lands, denunciations of non-Catholic religions and non-Catholics (especially Talmudic Judaism and the Jews who do not believe in Jesus Christ), and Her evangelical efforts in converting non-Catholics.

"Because all of the popes, all of the Church Fathers, and all of the saints before Vatican II have condoned these things, they likewise have committed grievous sins, some being excused for ignorance because of the times they lived in and because they were not as enlightened as modern man. We must now admit that these popes, Church Fathers, and saints were led astray by the very teachings of the gospels themselves in which Jesus Christ condones these things. It must then be concluded that the root of the problem is Jesus Christ Himself and then his apostles and then the gospels that the apostles wrote and then the Catholic Church that carried out these false teachings and tyrannical practices. We now have conclusive proof that Jesus' teachings are false; consequently, Jesus was either a fraud or a deluded madman. No doubt, He got His power from Satan and not from God.

"It is now evident to all that the God of Israel is not the Most Blessed Trinity. The God of Israel had used Jesus Christ, the Catholic Church, Catholicism, and Catholics to punish His chosen people, the Talmudic Jews, the same way He used the pagan Babylonians to punish His chosen people, the Jews, when the first Temple was destroyed. God had used the Babylonians to punish His chosen people until they had done acceptable penance; once they had, God turned His favor to them once again and allowed them to return to Jerusalem and rebuild the Temple, the second one. Likewise, God had used Catholics to punish His chosen people, the Talmudic Jews, until they had done acceptable penance; once they had, God turned His favor to them once again and allowed them to return to Jerusalem and rebuild the Temple, the third one. We now acknowledge that Talmudic Judaism is the only true religion and that Jesus Christ was actually the Antichrist, the false Messiah, and that the Talmudic Jewish Messiah is the true Christ. Hear ye, all people and nations: If you want to be blessed and saved, you must bow down before the true Christ of the Talmudic Jews and take his mark as proof of your allegiance

to him. You must first denounce Jesus Christ and the Most Holy Trinity. Come, all you nations and peoples, and adore the true Christ who will protect you."

When these things occur, faithful Catholics and other good-willed men will know that the following prophecies have been fulfilled:

"Let no man deceive you by any means, for unless there come a revolt first, <sup>23</sup> and the man of sin be revealed, the son of perdition [the Antichrist], Who opposeth, and is lifted up above all that is called God, or that is worshipped, so that he sitteth in the temple of God [the third Temple in the earthly Jerusalem], shewing himself as if he were God." (2 Thess. 2:3-4)

"And all the earth was in admiration after the beast [the Antichrist]. And they adored the dragon [Satan], which gave power to the beast: and they adored the beast, saving: Who is like to the beast? and who shall be able to fight with him? And there was given to him a mouth speaking great things, and blasphemies: and power was given to him to do two and forty months [3½ years]. And he opened his mouth unto blasphemies against God [the Catholic God, the Most Holy Trinity], to blaspheme his name, and his tabernacle [Mary, the Mother of God, and the Roman Catholic Church], and them that dwell in heaven [the saints]. And it was given unto him to make war with the saints [good Catholics on earth], and to overcome them. And power was given him over every tribe, and people, and tongue, and nation. And all that dwell upon the earth adored him, whose names are not written in the book of life of the Lamb, which was slain from the beginning of the world. ... whosoever will not adore the image of the beast, should be slain. And he shall make all, both little and great, rich and poor, freemen and bondmen, to have a character in their right hand, or on their foreheads. And that no man might buy or sell, but he that hath the character, or the name of the beast, or the number of his name. Here is wisdom. He that hath understanding, let him count the number of the beast. For it is the number of a man: and the number of him is six hundred sixty-six." (Apoc. Chapter 13)

"And he shall speak words against the High One, and shall crush the saints of the most High: and he shall think himself able to change times [the Catholic calendar and the reckoning of time according to years after Christ (A.D.)] and laws [Catholic laws: the Ten Commandments and other Church laws], and they shall be delivered into his hand until a time, and times, and half a time [3½ years]." (Dan. 7:25)

Dear reader, you have been forewarned! God never leaves men of good will in darkness

### The heavenly vs. the earthly Jerusalem

It has been prophesied that the Antichrist will rule from the third Temple in the earthly and carnal Jerusalem (which was reoccupied by the apostate Jews in 1947) thus healing apostate Jerusalem's death wound that it received in A.D. 70. Jesus teaches that the Antichrist, the ultimate abomination of desolation, will reign in the holy place that is in Judea, thus from the third Temple in Jerusalem: "When therefore you shall see the abomination of desolation, which was spoken of by Daniel the prophet, standing in the holy place: he that readeth let him understand. Then they that are in Judea, let them flee to the mountains." (Mt. 25:15-16)

54

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>23</sup> The revolt, the Great Apostasy, the falling away of the Catholic nations and peoples, has already occurred.

The two witnesses shall be murdered in Jerusalem, Antichrist's home: "And when they shall have finished their testimony, the beast, that ascendeth out of the abyss, shall make war against them, and shall overcome them, and kill them. And their bodies shall lie in the streets of the great city, which is called spiritually, Sodom and Egypt, where their Lord also was crucified." (Apoc. 11:7-8) This symbolic Sodom and Egypt is Jerusalem, where the Lord Jesus Christ was crucified.

Beware, dear reader, do not look to the current State of Israel and its capital of Jerusalem as blessed, for it is in the hands of the cursed apostate Jews and thus is the cursed home of the Antichrist. "They that call this people blessed, shall cause them to err: and they that are called blessed, shall be thrown down, headlong." (Isa. 9:16) Do not let Satan deceive you, for he appears as an angel of light by mimicking God. By signs and wonders and by twisting Scripture and other prophecies, Satan presents the Antichrist and his home (carnal Jerusalem in the hands of apostate Jews) as light and life, when they are darkness and eternal death.

Keep your attention focused on these following truths: God replaced the Old Covenant with the New Covenant, Judaism with Catholicism, the synagogue with the Catholic Church, the Sabbath on Saturday with the Lord's Day on Sunday, circumcision with baptism, the animal sacrifices with Christ's sacrifice, and the Kingdom of Israel with the Holy Roman Empire. To confirm that Christ had made all these things new, God also replaced Jerusalem with Rome as His home on earth. Consequently, God does not want the earthly Jerusalem to be ultimately exalted during the New Covenant era. That is one reason Catholics have not been able to maintain control over Jerusalem as they have with Rome; and when they did control Jerusalem, they never exalted it over Rome. Only after the end of this world as we know it, when the New Covenant is no longer in effect, will God again ultimately exalt Jerusalem, the Jerusalem that comes down from heaven.

St. John prophesied that the next holy and blessed Jerusalem, which replaces Rome as God's home on earth, will not be built on earth but will come down from heaven after the end of this world as we know it. And this new Jerusalem will not contain a Temple because Jesus Christ, who rules from it, will be the living Temple; and there will no longer be a need for a sacrifice to expiate sins:

"And I saw a new heaven and a new earth. For the first heaven and the first earth was gone, and the sea is now no more. And I John saw the holy city, the new Jerusalem, coming down out of heaven from God, prepared as a bride adorned for her husband. And I heard a great voice from the throne, saying: Behold the tabernacle of God with men, and he will dwell with them. And they shall be his people; and God himself with them shall be their God. ...And he took me up in spirit to a great and high mountain: and he shewed me the holy city Jerusalem coming down out of heaven from God ...And I saw no temple therein. For the Lord God Almighty is the temple thereof, and the Lamb [Jesus Christ]. And the city hath no need of the sun, nor of the moon, to shine in it. For the glory of God hath enlightened it, and the Lamb is the lamp thereof. And the nations shall walk in the light of it: and the kings of the earth shall bring their glory and honour into it. And the gates thereof shall not be shut by day: for there shall be no night there. And they shall bring the glory and honour of the nations into it." (Apoc. 21:1-3, 10, 22-26)

Therefore, the next holy and blessed Jerusalem shall come down from heaven after the end of this world as we know it, and it shall land in the same place as the earthly Jerusalem. It is this eternal Jerusalem, where Jesus Christ will rule as King and Mary as Queen, to which all the nations and peoples who have been saved shall come, adore, and give their obedience to the one true God. In this paradise, earth and heaven will be united and all nations and peoples will be Catholic. That is when the following Biblical prophecy, among many others, shall be fulfilled:

"Thus saith the Lord: All the land shall be desolate, but yet I will not utterly destroy." (Jer. 4:27) "For behold I create new heavens, and a new earth: and the former things shall not be in remembrance, and they shall not come upon the heart. But you shall be glad and rejoice for ever in these things, which I create: for behold I create Jerusalem a rejoicing, and the people thereof joy. And I will rejoice in Jerusalem, and joy in my people, and the voice of weeping shall no more be heard in her, nor the voice of crying." (Isa. 65: 17-19) "Sing praise, and rejoice, O daughter of Sion: for behold I come, and I [Jesus Christ] will dwell in the midst of thee: saith the Lord. And many nations [all Catholic] shall be joined to the Lord in that day, and they shall be my people [faithful Catholics, both Jews and Gentiles], and I will dwell in the midst of thee: and thou shalt know that the Lord of hosts hath sent me to thee. ... Thus saith the Lord of hosts: I am returned to Sion, and I will dwell in the midst of Jerusalem [the Jerusalem that comes down from heaven]..." (Zach. 2:10-11; 8:3) "Iniquity shall no more be heard in thy land, wasting nor destruction in thy borders, and salvation shall possess thy walls, and praise thy gates. Thou shalt no more have the sun for thy light by day, neither shall the brightness of the moon enlighten thee: but the Lord shall be unto thee for an everlasting light, and thy God for thy glory. Thy sun shall go down no more, and thy moon shall not decrease: for the Lord shall be unto thee for an everlasting light, and the days of thy mourning shall be ended. And thy people shall be all just, they shall inherit the land for ever, the branch of my planting, the work of my hand to glorify me." (Isa. 60: 18-21)

Blessed be the Lord God of Israel; who is the Most Holy Trinity; who is the God of the Holy Catholic Church; who is the one, true, and only God besides which there can be no other God.

## John Paul II was a False Prophet (5/05)

Although it is now certain that John Paul II was not **the** False Prophet, no true Catholic can even doubt that apostate Antipope John Paul II was **a** false prophet and, until this day, the most evil man to walk the face of the earth. Two men who are soon to come will surpass his evil: the False Prophet and then the Antichrist.

Several times I have made it publicly known that it was only my opinion that John Paul II was the False Prophet. God never confirmed my opinion. For instance, in my *Introduction to the Second Coming of Jesus Christ* speech in 1996, I said the following: "...the False Prophet John Paul II, who may be the False Prophet. It is not official, but that is what I believe..."

While it was only my opinion that John Paul II was the False Prophet, I stated with all certainty that he and the other apostate antipopes of the Vatican II Church were false prophets whose job was and is to pave the road for the False Prophet and thus ultimately for the Antichrist. This work is still in progress. The False Prophet, then, is soon to come. He will be an apostate antipope elected by the bishops of the Vatican II Church. After he directs the world to worship the Beast (the Antichrist), the False Prophet will live during the reign of the Antichrist and die with the Antichrist:

Apocalypse 19:20: "And the beast was taken, and with him the false prophet who wrought signs before him, wherewith he seduced them who received the

character of the beast and who adored his image. **These <u>two</u>** were cast alive into the pool of fire burning with brimstone." (See: Apoc. 20:9-10)

### Primary matter: The Catholic Faith, not the Apocalypse

The primary matter of my writings is the Catholic faith and not apocalyptic prophecies or signs and wonders. A man can know all there is about the Apocalypse and signs and wonders and still be on the road to hell if he is not Catholic or is a bad Catholic:

RJMI, Warning on the False Teachings of Brother Michael Dimond! (January 2000): "Curiosity Killed the Cat! - This warning relates to Michael Dimond's magazine he put out regarding the Book of the Apocalypse. One should be very careful not to place private revelations, apocalyptic interpretations, and secret society exposés over that of the faith—dogmas, morals, and the commandments of the Church. The learning of one's faith must take priority over all; and if it does not, then all else is a distraction from the Devil who will tempt you with inordinate curiosity that is based upon pride—the fact that you can have a knowledge of secrets, of good and evil, that no other man has. ... These types are easily detected. They have a disproportionate curiosity in secret societies and conspiracies over that of the faith, and it leaves their souls oblivious to the learning of dogma and doctrine. Our Lord said, "Doctrine to a fool is as fetters on the feet and manacles on the right hand." (Eclcus. 21:22) This inordinate curiosity is based on carnal lust and is charismatic (sensationalistic) in nature. These types will only attract curiosity seekers who are slothful in learning their faith because they have no true interest in it and no true love of God. They love themselves more than they love God. Quick are they to read the writings of the conspirators, but slothful are they in reading books that teach them the Catholic faith. Catholics are ever to strive to increase their knowledge of the Catholic faith. What good is it to know all about the Book of the Apocalypse and secret societies but to suffer the loss of your soul because you did not learn your faith and died in heresy? There is a place for all this, but it is secondary to learning your Catholic faith."

RJMI, Where are the Catholic Bishops and Priests? (2001): "Fallen-Away Catholics do not Deserve Catholic Clerics: They Deserve Impostors! - ...It is understanding, learning, professing, and living the Catholic faith that distinguishes the chosen from the wicked (Dan. 12:10). Where does that place sign-and-wonder seekers and those who have an inordinate amount of curiosity regarding apocalyptic signs and interpretations and secret society exposés? All this will send them to hell because they were not primarily interested in learning and living the Catholic faith. Signs and wonders have a place; but it is always to emphasize the Catholic faith and the professing, living, and practicing of it. Apocalyptic interpretations and secret society exposés have a place, but they are secondary to learning and living the Catholic faith."

\*May 3, 2005 (Started on April 13, 2005, Solemnity of St. Joseph, Terror of Demons)

# CBS's Blasphemous "Mystery of Christmas" (12/05)

Blasphemy against God, the apostles, the gospels, and the true Catholic Church is on the fast track. This is necessary for evil men to bring Antichrist to power. The true Christ must be discredited as a liar or a lunatic so the Antichrist can take the place of the true Christ. This has already been accomplished because Christ is discredited by implication when the dogmas of the Catholic Church, the apostles, or the gospels are discredited. To discredit any one of these is to discredit Christ who instituted them and guaranteed their infallibility. Once the dogmas of the Catholic Church are discredited, everything else related to the one true religion of Catholicism is discredited because all religious truth stands on the infallible dogmas of God's Catholic Church. The discrediting of Catholic dogmas started well over 120 years ago and was completed during the apostate Second Vatican Council that created the Vatican II Church, which is a cheap imitation of the true Catholic Church. The apostate antipopes of this non-Catholic Church were and are false prophets whose job is to seductively deal a death blow to Catholic dogmas and thus discredit the true Catholic Church and ultimately Christ Himself. Since this has happened, the flood gates of impiety and blasphemy have been opened in the public realm by the explicit discrediting of the saints, the apostles, the gospels, and Jesus Christ.

All the preliminary steps needed before Christ is explicitly denounced as a liar or lunatic have been completed. For some time now, Christ has been directly blasphemed and thus discredited. The week before Christmas, on December 20, CBS's 48 Hours added a major contribution toward this goal by producing and broadcasting to the world "The Mystery of Christmas." The title led one to believe that this show would be a true and holy explanation of the mysteries of Christmas; however, this was an act of seduction because the show actually blasphemed the true mysteries of Christmas. It blasphemed Christ, the Blessed Virgin Mary, the apostles, and the gospels in a way that no major broadcasting company has yet dared to do. For instance, who would have imagined that the whole world was ready to hear the blasphemous teachings of Talmudic Judaism that Mary was an adultress and Jesus was a bastard. To see where these blasphemies are located in the Talmud, see Rev. Pranaitis' *The Talmud Unmasked*: Article II – The Life of Christ: 1. Illegitimate and Conceived during Menstruation. CBS, indeed, had the audacity to present these blasphemous teachings to the world:

Prof. White: "There later developed a counter legend in Jewish tradition that in fact Jesus was the product of an illicit liaison between Mary and a Roman soldier by the name of Pantera."

Maureen: "In fact, archaeologists have found the grave stone of a Roman soldier, inscribed with the name 'Pantera'..." [A picture of the grave stone was shown.]

Prof. Pagels: "What you see in the earliest account of the gospel of Mark is the statement that Jesus is the son of Mary. There's no mention of a father there. Now it would be very unusual to talk about a Jewish boy as the son of Mary if he had a legitimate father. So it...it...it's an odd account."

Maureen: "Do you think that Jesus was illegitimate?"

Prof. Pagels: "I think we don't know. Um, but I do know that there was something embarrassing or troubling about the birth of Jesus that caused a lot of questions. ...It's not a literal truth that Jesus...um...was born from a mother impregnated by the Spirit..."

Maureen: "So it questions the entire concept of the Virgin Mary..."

Prof. Pagels: "Yes, what it does is suggest that it's...it's a mistake to take literally the idea that Jesus was born from a woman who hadn't conceived with a man."

Even if one does not believe in these blasphemies, it is still blasphemy to believe Jesus is not God and the Messiah no matter how nicely one tries to deny these dogmas. Compounding their blasphemies, the show contained more lies that denied the Incarnation (that Mary conceived by God the Holy Ghost and thus Jesus is both God and man). The apostate and blasphemous priest Dominic Crossan, a ludicrous guru of the hate-the-true-Jesus movement, said the following:

Crossan: "Oh, you mean Joseph wasn't the father? Around here we call that adultery. ...If I had to reconstruct it as a historian, I think Jesus was born in the normal way any children are conceived and born in the normal way any child is born..."

Maureen: "Conceived by Joseph and Mary..."

Crossan: "Conceived by Joseph and Mary."

Maureen: "Mary is not a virgin..."

Crossan: "Mary is not a virgin. It's a way of saying that this child is unique, and therefore the conception of this child must be as unique as you can imagine."

The blasphemer Crossan said the Christians made up the story that Jesus was the Son of God to counter the belief that Caesar was the Son of God. In a flood of more lies and blasphemies, the show presented so-called experts who said there was no census just prior to the birth of Jesus; that Jesus was born in Nazareth and not Bethlehem; that the murder of the Holy Innocents never occurred; and that the Holy Family never went to Egypt. To justify all these lies and blasphemies, they portrayed the apostles as liars who made up stories about Jesus to fit Messianic prophecies from the Old Testament era.

That this can happen without so-called Catholics condemning from the roof tops these blasphemies and denouncing and calling to conversion the blasphemers only proves that these so-called Catholics are not Catholic at all. Just try denying or simply doubting the Holocaust of apostate Jews during World War II and see how the apostate Jews and their minions zealously condemn, punish, and call to conversion the "offenders." Conversely, whoever doubts or denies or even directly blasphemes Jesus, the Blessed Virgin Mary, the apostles, or the gospels is rewarded and protected by "the whole world [that] is seated in wickedness... [that has been] infected by the inhabitants thereof." (1 Jn. 5:19; Isa. 24:5)

To conclude, CBS's "Mystery of Christmas" is solved. It is the "Mystery of Iniquity" that brings Antichrist to power as mentioned by St. Paul in 2 Thessalonians 2:7. It was a blasphemous attempt by evildoers to deny the true Christ in order to bring the false Christ, the Antichrist, to power: "He who denieth that Jesus is the Christ? This is Antichrist." (1 John 2:22) Wake up, men of good will! Join us few Catholics who have abjured from the Great Apostasy so that we may fight this battle together with the indispensable help of the one true God, the God of the Holy Catholic Church, and most importantly so that you may have a chance to save your immortal souls!

<sup>\*</sup>December 2005